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BY FEDERAL EXPRESS 

Ms. Blanca Bay6 

Septmerber 4, 1998 

Director, Division of Records and Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: Application of CendantCom, Inc. to Provide lntercxcbaogc Services 

Dear Ms. Bay6: 

Enclosed for filing with the Florida Public Service Commission please find nn 
original and 6 copies of the application of CendantCom, Inc. to provide resold intcrcxchange 
services in the state of Florida, and a check in the amount of $250 in payment of the applicable 
fee. Please also find enclosed a duplicate of this fil ing a d a postage-prepaid. self-addressed 
envelope. Kindly date-stamp the duplicate upon receipt and return it in the envelope provided. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions concerning this 
filing. 

Enclosures . ' 
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FLORIDA PUBLJC SERVICE COMMISSION 
DIVISION OF COMMUNICATIONS 

BUREAU OF SERVICE EVALUATION 

APPLICATION FORM 
for 

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE 
INTEREXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 

Instructions 

ORIGINAL 

A. This form is used for an original application for a certificate and for approval of sale. 
assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. ln case of a sale, assignment or transfer, 
the information provided shall be for the purchaser, assignee or transf cree (See Appendix 
A). 

B. Respond to each item requested in the application and appendices. If an item is not 
applicable, please explain why. 

C. Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space. 

D. If you have questions about completing the form, contact 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Communications 
Bureau of Service Evaluation 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Guntet Building 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 413-6251 

E. Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along with a non­
refundable application fee of $250.00 to: 

OC01/ K1NNR/ 6140l . 1 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Admini,atration 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Gerald Gunter Building 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 413-6251 
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I . Select what type of business your company will be conducting (check all that apply): 

( ) Facilitiea based carrier - compuny owns and operates or plans to own and 
operate telecommunications switches and transmission facilities in Florida. 

( ) Operator Service Provider - company provides or plans to provide alternative 
operator services for IXCs; or toll operator services to cull aggregntor locations: or 
clearinghouse services to bill such calls. 

( ) Reaeller - company has or plans to have one or more switches but primarily leases 
the transmission facilities of other carriers. Bills its own customer base for 
services used. 

(./) Switchless rebiller - company has no switch or transmission facilitit:s but may 
have a billing computer. Aggregates traffic to obtain bulk discounts from 
underlying carrier. Rebills end users at a rate above its discount but generally 
below the rate end users would pay for unaggregated traffic. 

( ) Multi-Location Di1count Aggregator - company contracts with unaffi liated 
entities to obtain bulk/volume discounts under multi-location discount plans from 
certain underlying carriers. Then offers the resold service by enrolling unaffiliated 
customers. 

( ) Prepaid Debit Card Provider - any person or entity that purchases 800 access 
from an underlying carrier or unaffiliated entity for u'iC with prepaid debit card 
service and/or encodes the cards with personal identification numbers. 

2. This is an application for ..J (check one): 

(./ ) Original Authority (New company) 

( ) Approval of transfer (To another cen ificated company) 

( ) Approval of assignment of existing certificate (To a nonccrtificated company) 

( ) Approval for transfer of control (To another certificated company.) 

3. Nam~ of corporation, partnership, cooperative, joint venture or sole proprietorship: 

CendantCom, Inc. 

IORM PSCJ<:MU J I (12196) 
Required by Commauion Rvle Nos 2S·24 471. 
2~·2-1 .a?J, lllld 2~·24 480(2) . 

DCOl/Ki tlNR/61403 . l 
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4. Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

CendantCom, Inc. 

S. National address (including street name & number, post office box. city, state and zip 
code). 

CendantCom, lnc. 
707 Summer St. 
Stamford, CT 06901 

6. Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state and 1ip 
code). 

Not applicable 

7. Structure of organization: 

( ) Individual ( ) Corporation 
(./) Foreign Corporation ( ) Foreign Partnership 
( ) General Partnership ( ) Limited Partnership 

( ) Other,--------

8. If applicant is an individual or partnership. please give name. title and addn.>ss of sole 
proprietor or partners. 

Not applicable 

(a) Provide proof of compliance with the foreign partnership statute (Chapter 620.169 
FS), if applicable. 

(b) Indicate if the individual or uny of the partners have previously been: 

(I) adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found !'••illy of any felony or 
of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending 
proceedings. 

(2) officer, director, partner or stockholder in an) other Florida certificated 
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no 
longer associated with th~ company, give reason why not. 

t ORM PSCIC.MU ) I ( 12196) 
lt<qu11\:d b) {.'om.minion Rule Nos lS·2• 01. 
2S·24 47), and 2'·24 41()(2) 

OCOl/P:UINll/ ,1401 . 1 
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e 
9. If incorporated, please give: 

(a) Proof from the Florida Secretary of State that the applicant hns authority to 
operate in Floridn. 

Corporate chaner number: 
CedantCom bas applied for authority to operate in Florida and will forward 
proof of authority to the Commission as soon as it bas been gra nted. 

(b) Name and address of the company's Florida registered agent. 

CT Coporation System 
1200 South Pine Island Road 
Plantation, FL 33324 

(c) Provide proof of compliance with the fictit ious name statute (Chapter 865.09 FS). 
if applicable. Not applicable 

Fictitious name registration number: 

(d) Indicate if any of the officers, directors. or any of the ten largest stockholders have 
previously been: 

(I) adjudged bankrupt, mentaJly incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or 
of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending 
proceedings. 

No 

(2) officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida cenificoted 
telephone company. lfycs. give nwne of company and relationship. If no 
longer associated with the company. give reason why not. 

No 

FORM P"CJCMU l l (12196) 
Rcqu11cd by Comml"lon Ruic Nos 2S.24 471, 
2~·24 471 1111d 25-24 U 0(2) 

OC0l/Kllfl'lll/6140l . l 
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10. Who will serve as liaison with the Commission in regard to (please give name. title. 
address and telephone number): 

(a) The application: 

Danny E. Adams 
Rebekah J. Kinnett 
Kelly Drye & Warren, LLP 
1200 19th Street, N.W. Suite SOO 
Wubington, D.C. 20036 
Telephone: (202) 955-9600 
Facsimile: (202) 955-9792 

(b) Official Point of Contact for the ongoing operations of the company: 

(c) Tariff: 

Peter Taktikos 
CendantCom, Inc. 
707 Summer St. 
Stamford, CT 0690 I 
(203) 326-8897 

Danny E. Adams 
Rebekah J. Kinnett 
Kelly Drye & Warren, LLP 
1200 19th Street, N.W. Suite 500 
Washington, D.C. 20036 
Telephone: (201) 955-9600 
Facsimile: (202) 955-9792 

(d) Complaints/Inquiries from customers: 

H>RM ~C'ICMll 11 ( 12196) 

Customers may call the toll-free customer service number of 
CendantCom Inc. (800-793-0871 ). 

Required b) Comml~slon Ruic Nt>t lS-24 471 , 
25·211 41J and 2S-24 4&0(2) 

-5-
OCOl/KINNR/61401 . l 



e 
11. List the states in which the applicant: 

{a) Has operated as an interexchange carrier. 

None 

(b) Has applications pending to be certificated as an intercx< hangc carrier. 

None 

(c) Is certificated to operate as an interexchange carrier. 

None 

(d) Has been denied authority to operate as an intcrcxc1 ange carrier and the 
circumstances involved. 

None 

(e) Has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications statutes 
and the circumstances involved. 

None 

{f) Has been involved in civil court proceedings with an intcrcx~hange carrier. local 
exchange carrier or other telecommunications entity, and the circumstances involved. 

None 

12. What services will the applicant offer to other certified telephone companies: 

( ) Facilities 
( ) Billing and Collection 
( ) Maintenance 
(.t) Other: None 

13. Do you have a marketing program? 

Yes 

I ORM l'\<'I( Ml .l 1 t 12196) 
Required b) ( ommt»Wlt Ruic: Nos 25-24 47 I. 
2'·24 ""·and 25·24 410(1). 

OC01/Kl WNR/ , l40) 1 

( ) Operators 
( ) Sales 



e 
14. Will your marketing program: 

No 

( ) Pay commissions? 
( ) Offer sales franchises? 
( ) Offer multi-level sales incentives? 
( ) Offer other sales incentives? 

IS. Explain any of the offers checked in question 14 {to whom. what amount. type of franchise. 
etc.). 

Not applicable 

16. Who will receive the bills for your service (check all that apply)? 

(.I) Residential customers (.I ) Business customers 
( ) PA TS providers ( ) PA TS station end-users 
( ) Hotels & motels ( ) I lotcl & motel guests 
( ) Universities ( ) Univ. donnitory residents 
( ) Other:(specify) ____________ _ 

17. Please provide the following (if applicable): 

(a) Will the name of your company appear on the bill for your services, and if not. who 
will the billed party contact to ask questions about the bill (provide name and phone 
nwnber) and how is this infonnation provided? 

Charges for CendantCom services will appear on the billing page or llSP&C, 
and wilJ be identified as being CendantCom charges. USP&C's customer 
service number (800-449-1051) appears on the bill page, and USP&C will 
transfer all CendantCom customer inquiries they receive to CendantCom 's 
service center. 

(b) The name and address of the finn who will bill for your lt!f\ acc. 

USP&C 
esoo Blue Ridge Boulevard 
Suite 300 
Kansas City, MO 64138 

WRM ~C:ICMU ) I (12196) 
Required by Commission Ruic Nos lS·2A 471. 
2S·l4 47) and 2S-24 41()(2) 

OCOl/IUNNR/ 61403 . l 
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18. Please provide all available documentation demonstrating that the applicant has the following 
capabilities to provide interexchange telecommunications service in Florida. 

A. Financial Capability 

See Attachments I and 2. 

Regarding the showing of financial capability, the following applies: 

The application should contain the applicant's financial statements for the most recent 
3 years, including: 

I . the balance sheet 
2. income statement 
3. statement of retained earnings 

Further, ft written explanatjon, which can include supporting documentation. 
regarding the following should be provided to show financial capability. 

I. Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to provide the requested service in the geographic area proposed 
to be served 

2. Please provide documentation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to maintain the requested service. 

3. Please provide documentation that the applicnnt has sufficient financial 
capability to meet its lease or ownership obligations. 

NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, 
a projected profit and loss statement, credit references. credit bureau reports, and 
descriptions of business relationships with financial institutions. 

If available, the financial statements should be audited financial statements. If the 
applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shnll be so stated. The 
unaudited financial statements should then be signed by the applicant's chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer. The sign:uures should affinn that the 
financial statements are true and correct. 

B. Managerial capability. 

See Attachment 3. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12196) 
Rcquirtd by Conunbtlon Ruic Nos l 5-lU7 I, 
2S·24 473. Ind 25·24 41()(2) 

DCOl/KIHHR/,140).1 
-8-



e 
C. TechnicaJ capability. 

As a reseller, CendiantCom wiU rely on the tttbnical expertise of its 
underlying carrier for maintenance of the network. 

19. Please submit the proposed tariff under which the company plans to begin operation. Use the 
fonnat required by Commission Rule 25-24.485 (example enclosed). 

CendantCom will ftle its proposed intett1cbange tariff within the next week. 

20. The applicant will provide the following interexchange carrier services (Check all that 
apply): [Please provide this information) 

( ) MTS with distance sensitive per minute rates 
( ) Method of access is FGA 
( ) Method of access is FGB 
( ) Method of access is FGO 
( ) Method of access is 800 

( ) MTS with route specific rates per minute 
( ) Method of access is FGA 
( ) Method of access is FGB 
( ) Method of access is FGO 
( ) Method of access is 800 

(./ ) MTS with statewide Rat rates per minule (i.e. not distance sensilive) 
( ) Method of access is FGA 
( ) Method of access is FOB 
(.t ) Method of access is FGD 
( ) Method of access is 800 

( ) MTS for pay telephone service providers. 

( ) Block of time calling plan (R~acb Out Florida. Ring America. etc.) 

(./) 800 Service (Toll free) 

( ) WA TS type service (Bulk or volume discount) 
( ) Method of access is via dedicated faci lities 
( ) Method of access is via switched facili ties 

( ) Private line services (Channel Services) (For u . l.544 mbps. DS-3, etc.) 

I ORM P\C 1t M U ) I (1 2N6) 
Rc11ulml b) <:omm1 sl011 Rule NOf 25·2A.471. 
25·2U 7J. and 2S·lA 480(2) 

DCOl/KINNR / ,1401.l 
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(.! ) Travel service 
( ) Method of access is 950 
(.I ) Method of access is 800 

( ) 900 service 

( ) Operator Services 
( ) Available to presubscribed customers 
( ) Available to non presubscribcd customers (for example. patrons of hotels. 

students in universities, patients in hospita ls. 
( ) A vailablc to inmates 

Services included are: 
( ) 
( ) 
( ) 
( ) 
( ) 

Station assistance 
Person to person assistance 
Directory assistance 
Operator verify and interrupt 
Conference calling 

21. What docs the end user dial for each of the intcrcxchange cam er services that were checked 
in services included (above). 

For calling/travel card calls, the end user dials an 800 access number, an identification 
number, and the destination telephone number. For direct calls, the end user dials a 
10-XXX access code or an 800 access number with an identification number, plus the 
destination telephone number. 

22. Other: 

I ORM l'S<.'ICMU 31 (12196) 
Rcqul~d b)' Comn11u1011 Ruic Nos 25·24 47 I . 
2s.24 473, anc1 n.2 .. 4I0(2) 

OCOl/KlNN'll/61403.l 
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** APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT ** 

I. REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: 
J understand that aJl telephone companies must pay a regulatory assessment fee in the 
amount of .15 of one percent of its gross operating revenue derived from intrastate business. 
Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a company, a minimum annual assessment fee 
of $50 is required. 

2. GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: 
I understand that all telephone companies must pay a gross receipts tax of two and one-half 
percent on aJl intra and interstate business. 

3. SALES TAX: 
I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra and interstate revenues. 

4. APPLICATION FEE: 
A non-refundable application fee of $250.00 must be submitted with the application. 

5. RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF RULES: 
I acknowledge receipt and understanding of the Florida Public Service Commission's RuJcs 
and Orders relating to my provision of interexchange telephone service in Florida. l also 
understand that it is my responsibility to comply with all current and f ulurc Commission 
requirements regarding intcrexchange service. 

6. ACCURACY OF APPLICATION: 
By my signature below, I the undersigned owner or officer of the named utility in the 
application, attest to the accuracy of the infonnation contained in this application and 
associated attachments. J have read the foregoing and declare that to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, the infonnation is a true and correct statement. Further, I am aware 
that pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, "Whoever knowingly makes a false 
statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public sen-ant in the performance of 
bis official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as 
provided in s. 775.082 and s. 775.083". 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Peter Taktikos. Vice PresJdent 

I ORM l'\CIC Mii II ( 1 llY(t) 
Kcqullrd h) ( u1111nl\\kH1 Ruic Not 2'·24 471, 
H-2<1 ol 71. and 2S·24 oll0(2) 

OCOl/XlNNR/6140l.l 
-11-

September 4. 1998 
Date 

(203) 316~8897 
Telephone Number 



** APPENDIX 8 ** 

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE PAYMENTS 

A statement of how the Commission can be assured of the security of the customer's deposits 
and advance payments may be responded to in one of the fo llowing ways (applicant please check 
one): 

(.t ) The applicant will not collect deposits nor will it collect payments for service 
more than one month in advance. 

( ) The applicant wiU rue with the Commission and maintain a surety bond in an 
amount equal to the current balance of deposits and advance payments in ex~s,, 
of one month. (Bond must accompany application.) 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Peter Taktikos, Vice Prpident 

I ORM P\CIC M lJ JI (12196) 
Required b) Commission Ruic Nos 2S·24A71. 
2S·24.47J, and 2S.24 480(2) 

OC'O J / KINNR/£ 14 03 . l 
-13-

September 4. 1998 
Date 

(203) 326-8897 
Telephone Number 



** APPENDIX C ** 

INTRASTATE NETWORK 

I. POP: Addresses where located, and indicate if owned or leased. 

Nont 

I) 
2) 
3) 
4) 

2. SWITCHES: Address where located, by type of switch and indicate if owned or leased. 

None 

1) 
2) 
3) 
4) 

3. TRANSMISSION FACILITIES: POP-to-POP faci lities by type of facili ties (microwave, 
fiber copper, satellite, etc.) and indicate if owned or leased. 

None 

POP-to-POP 

I) 
2) 
3) 

TYPE OWNERSlllP 

4. ORJGINATING SERVICE: Please provide the list of exchanges \\here you are proposing 
to provide originating service within thirty (30) days after the efTective date of the certi licate. 
(Appendix D) 

Statewide 

I ORM PS('!( Mll } I ( 12196) 
Rc111.11rcd b) < omm ....... Rui. Nt>1 2S·l4 '471 . 
2~ ·24 471, anJ l~·2• 00(2) 

DC;>l/KillNR/'140J . 1 
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5. TRAFFIC RESTRICTIONS: Please explain how the applicant will comply with the EAEA 
requirements contained in Commission Rule 25-24.471 (4)(a) (copy enclosed). 

Not applicable 

6. CURRENT FLORIDA INTRASTATE SERVICES: Applicant has ( ) or has not (.I ) 
previously provided intrastate telecommunications in Florida. If the answer is has, fully 
describe the following: 

(a) Whal services have been provided and when did these service begin? 

(b) If the services are not currently offered, when were they discontinued? 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: l/:tbLJi,b·kor I~ 
Signature 1 

Peter Taktiko!I, Vice Pre3ident 

fORM PSC/CMUJI (12196) 
Required b) Commission Ruic Nos 2S·24 471, 
H·24 OJ. and 25·24 480(2) 

-15-
OCOl/IUNNR/61401 . l 

September 4, 1998 
Date 

(203) 326-8897 
Telephone Number 



•• APPENDIX 0 •• 
Describe the service area in which you hold yourself oul to provide service by telephone 

company exchange. If aU services listed in your tariff are not offered at all locations. so indicate. 

In an effort to assist you, attached is a list of major exchanges in Florida showing the small 
exchanges with which each has extended area service (EAS). 

•• FLORIDA EAS FOR MAJOR EXCHANGES ** 

EXTENDED SERVJCE ARFA WITH TI~ESE EXCHANGES 

PENSACOLA: 

PANAMA CITY: 

TALLAHASSEE: 

JACKSONVILLE: 

GAINESVILLE: 

OCALA: 

DAYTONA BEACH: 

TAMPA: 

CLEARWATER: 

ST. PETERSBURG: 

f ORM PSC/CMU 31 (121961 
Rcqulml by Commlulon Ruic Nos 2S·24 0 I. 
2 ~ ·24 47J. and lj.24 480(2) 

DCOl/~INtlR/6140) , l 

Cantonment. Gulf Breeze, Pace. Milton Hollcy­
Navarre. 

Lynn Haven, Panama City Beach. Youngstown­
Fountain and Tyndall AFB. 

Crawfordville, Havana. Monticello. Panacea. 
Sopchoppy and St. Marks. 

Baldwin. Ft. georgc, Jacksonville Bcuch. Callahan. 
Marxville. Middleburg. Orange Park. Ponte Vedra and 
Julington. 

Alachua, Archer, Brooker. Hawthomc, 1 ligh Springs. 
Melrose, Micanopy. Newberry and Waldo. 

Belleview, Citra, Dunnellon. Forest Lady Lake (821 ). 
Mcintosh, Oklawaha, Orange Springs. Salt Springs 
and Silver Springs Shores. 

New Smyrna Beach. 

Central None 
East Pinnt City 
North Zephyrhills 
South Palmetto 
West Clearwater 

St. Petersburg. Twnpa-Wc~t and Tarpon Springs. 

Clearwater. 

- 16-



e 
LAKELAND: 

ORLANDO: 

WlNTER PARK: 

TITUSVILLE: 

COCOA: 

MELBOURNE: 

SARASOTA: 

FT. MYERS: 

NAPLES: 

WEST PALM BEACH: 

POMPANO BEACH: 

FT. LAUDERDALE: 

HOLLYWOOD: 

NORTH DADE: 

MIAMI: 

e 
Bartow, Mulberry. Plant City. Polk City and Winter 1 lavcn. 

Apopka, East Orange, Lake Rucna Vista, Oviedo. 
Windermere, Winter Garden. Winter Park. 
Montverde. Reedy Creel. and Oviedo-Winter Springs. 

Apopka. East Orange, Lake Buena Vista. Orlando. 
Oviedo. Sanford. Windermere. Winter Garden. 
Oviedo-Winter Springs, Reedy Creek, Geneva and 
Montverde. 

Cocoa and Cocoa Beach. 

Cocoa Reach. Eau Gallic. Melbourne nnd fitusvillc. 

Cocoa, Cocoa 8CDch, F..au Gallic and Scba. ... tian. 

Bradenton, Myakka and Venice. 

Cape Coral. Ft. Myers Beach, North Cape Coral, North 
Ft. Myers, Pinc Island, Lehigh Acres and Sanibcl­
Capti va Islands. 

Marco Island and North N~plcs. 

Boynton Beach and Jupiter. 

Boca Raton. Coral Springs, Deerfield Beach and Ft. 
Lauderdale. 

Coral Springs. Deerfield Beach. I lollywood and 
Pompano Beach. 

Ft. Lauderdale and North Dade. 

Hollywood, Miami and Perrine. 

1 lomestend, North Dade am! Perrin..:. 

CendantCom intends to offer suvi«S throughout the state of Florioa. 

fORM PSCJCMU 31 (IV)6) 
Required b) Commb.slon Ruic NOJ 2S·2 .. 171. 
2~·24 47l II/Id 25·24 480(2) 

DCOl / KIHNR/6 1403 . l 
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VERIFICATION 

I am authoriud to represent CendantCom, Inc. and to make this verification on its 
behalf. The statements in the foregoing document arc true of my own knowledge. except as to 
matters which arc therein stated on information and belief, and as to those matters, I believe them 
to be true. I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Sworn and subscribed to 
before me this /s.f 
day <1f S .Ppt~ 1998. 

~ACCIA 
N OT ARV PUBLIO 

tt'f tQIAMISSDf ~ I. 
My Commission expires: /oZj!'L W 

DCOl/KINNIV60llS I 

By: &c/~ 
Peter Ta.ktikos 
Vice President 
CendantCom, Inc. 

-· 



Attachment 1 
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

FORM 10-Q 
l&J QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR lS(d) OF THE SECURITlES 

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quanerly period ended June 30. 1998 

Commission file number 1·10308 

Cendant Corporation 
(Exact namt of rtgistrant as sptcifitd in its charttr) 

Ddaware 
(Stott or Othtr Jurisdiaion of 

Incorporation or Organilation) 

6 Sylvan Way, Panlppany, New leney 
(Address of Principal Extcutivt Oflict) 

(973) •28-9700 

06-0918165 
(IRS Employer 

ldtntification No.) 

01054 
(Zip Codt) 

( Rtgistrant's ultphont number, includir.g arta codt) 

Not Applicable 
(Formtr namt, formtr addrtss and former fiscal ytar, if appl/cablt) 

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 
13 or lS(d) or the Securities and Exchange Act or 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such 
shorter period that the Registrant was required to ftle such reports). and (2) has been subject to such filil'g 
requirements for the past 90 days: Yes (X) No ( ) 

AppUaiible Only to Corporate hlHn: 

The number or shares out5tandina of each or the Registrant~ classes of C0'1lmon stock was 
857,983,796 shares or Common Stock outstanding as of August 11 , 19Q8. 



CENDANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

INDEX 

PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
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Certain statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 constitute .. forward-looking statements" 
within the meaning or the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking 
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual 
results, performance. or achievements of the Company to be materially different from any future results. 
performance. or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. These forward· 
looking statements were based on various factors and were derived utilizing numerous important 
assumptions and other important factors that could cause actual r~ults to differ materially from those in 
the forward-looking statements. Important assumptions and other important factors that could cause 
actual results to differ materially Crom those in the forward-looking statements, include. but are not 
limited to: the outcome or the investigation of the Audit Committee of the Company's Board of Directors 
into the accounting irregularities; the outcome of pending or future litigation relating to such accounting 
irregularities: uncertainty as to the Company's future profitability: the Company's ability to develop and 
implement operational and financial systems to manage rapidly growing operations: competition in the 
Company's existing and potential future lines of business: the Company's ability to integrate and operate 
successfully acquired businesses and the risks associated with such businesses: the Company's ability to 
obtain financing on acceptable terms to finance the Company's growth strategy and for the Company to 
operate withfo the limitations imposed by financing arrangements: uncertainty as to the ruture 
profitability or acquired busin~. and other £actors. Other £actors and assumptions not identified above 
were also involved in the derivation or these forward-looking statements. and lhe railurc or such other 
assumptions to be realized as well as other £actors may also cause actual results to differ materially from 
those projected. The Company assumes no obligation to update these forward-looking statements to 
reflect actual results. changes in auumptions or chanaes In other factors atrecting such forward -looking 
statements. 
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PART 1 - nNANClALaoRMATION 

ITEM I - PINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

CENDANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In MllUom, Except Sb8re D•ta) 

Cash and cash equivalents ......................................... . 
Receivables. net .. .. ....................... . ............. ......... . 
Other current assets .. . ........................... ................ . 
Net assets or discontinued operations ..... . .......... ............... . 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS ... .. .... . ............................. . 

Deferred membership acquisition costs •............•................. 
Franchise agreements, net ......................................... . 
Goodwill. net . . . . . . . . . . . .. . ...... . .............................. . 
Other intangjbles, net ............................................. . 
Other assets ...................... . .. . ... . .. . .................... . 

TOTAL ASSETS EXCLUSIVE OF ASSETS UNDER PROGRAMS .... . 

ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT AND MORTGAGE PROGRAMS 
Net investment in leases and leased vehicles .......... ............... . 
Relocation receivables ................................... ........ . 
Mortgage loans held for sale .............................. ......... . 
Mongage servicing rights ............................. ............ . . 

TOTAL ASSETS ................................................... . 

s 1.549.7 
1.148 7 
1.017.5 

522.3 

4.238.2 

448.0 
974.9 

4.130.9 
1.041.6 
1.899.2 

12.732.8 

3.918.9 
590.6 

2.754.0 
480.5 

7.744.0 

$20,476.8 

Sec accompanying notes to conioltdated financial i.tatcmcnt~ 

3 

~r)l, 
199'7 

( As rat.led) 

s 
1.193.0 

714.l 
285.0 

2.192.1 

370.S 
8903 

2.206.4 
847.3 
986.4 

7.493.0 

3.659.1 
ns.3 

1.636.3 
373.0 

6.443.7 

$13.936.7 



CENDANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In MUUons. E1ttpl Share Dalli) 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Accounts payable and other current lfabilitics .................. . 
Tcrrn loan-current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ...... . 
TOTAL CURREITT LIABILITIES .................................. . 

Deferred income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . 
Long·terrn debt . . . . . . . . . . ................ . ............ . ........... . 
Other noncurrent liablllties .. .... ... ... . . ... . .... . .............. . . . .. . 

TOTAL LIABILITIES EXCLUSIVE OF LIABILITIES UNDER 
PROGRAMS ...................................... .. ............ . 

LIABILmES UNDER MANAGEMENT AND MORTGAGE 
PROGRAMS 
Debt ............... . ...... . ..................................... . 

Deferred income taxes ......................... . .................. . 

Mandatorily redeemable preferred securities issued by subsidiaries ....... . 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11) 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Preferred stock. $.OJ par value - authori1.cd 10 million shor< '>: none issued 

and outstanding .. . ..... . .. .. .......... . . . ........................ . 
Common stock, S.01 par value - authorized 2 billion shares: issued 

857 ,986.368 and 838,333,800 shares. respectively .. . ................... . 
Addi.ionaJ paid-in capital. ........................................... . 
Retained earnings ........ . ......................................... . 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss .................... . ...... .. . .. . 
Restricted stock. deferred compensation ... . ........................... . 
Treasury stock, al cost 6,7.S0,546 shares . ............................... . 

Total shareholders' equity . . ......... ... . . . . ......................... . 

TOTAL LIABILmES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ........ . .. . . 

s 1.970.5 
1.8SO.O 

J.820.5 
631-* 

2.18SA 
367.3 

7.004.6 

6.830.0 

264.8 

1.426.5 

8.7 
3.41 l.5 
1.658.5 

(53.4) 

(74.4) 

4.9.S0.9 

$20.476.8 

Sec ac:companying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

Otte.Mr )I, 
1997 

(Aa rftltltd) 

s 1.539.8 

1.539.8 
X615 

1.246.0 
173.2 

3.820.5 

5.602.6 

295.7 

8.4 
3.080.8 
1.244.7 

(38.2) 
(3.4) 

(74.4) 

4.217.9 

$13.936.7 



ct.9ANT CORPORATION AND suasa&1ES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(In MIWom, E1oept Per Sbare Dau) 

1llftc Meetlll £Me4 Sia Mo.tilt ~ , ... J.ee JO. .. .,,, 1991 1997 
(Al,.....) (At racetd) 

REVENUES 
Service fees and mcmbcnhip, net •.......... SI .261.2 s 921.3 S2.3J8.3 SJ .808.5 
Fleet leasing (net or depreciation and interest 

costs or $318.1. $298.2, $629.7 and 
$584.3.rcspectively) ...................... 19.1 15.9 39.0 30.1 

Other ....................... ... ... . ...... 26.0 86.8 103.9 143.2 

NET REVENUES .......................... 1,306.3 1.024.0 2.461.2 1.981.8 

EXPENSES 
Operatinit . . .......... . ..... .. .... .. ...... 459.9 303.8 788.7 621.7 
Marketing and reservation ........ . .. . ... : .. 271.4 261.7 526.2 493.8 
General and administrative ................. 129.4 140.2 270.4 293.7 
Merger-related costs and other unusual 

charges (credits) ....... . . .. ..... .. ....... (42.0) 299.6 (42.0) 299.6 
Depreciation and amortization .............. 84.6 58.5 149.3 115.6 
Costs a)$()Ciated with accounting errors .... . . 32.2 32.2 
Interest. net .... . ................. . ....... 23.6 12.8 42.8 22.8 

TOTAL EXPENSES ........................ 959.l 1.076.6 l.767.6 1.847.2 

Income (loss) from continuing operations before 
income tues and minority interest. .......... 347.2 (52.6) 693.6 134.6 

Provision for income taxes ............. . ...... 117.8 35.3 243.8 122.1 
Minority interest, net ............... . ........ 14.9 19.8 

INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING 
OPERATIONS .................. . ........ 214.5 {87.9) 430.0 12.S 

Loss from discontinued operations net of 
income taxes (Note 6) ...................... {3.6) {4.4) { 16.2) {l.5) 

NET INCOME (LOSS) ......... .. ........... s 210.9 s (92 3) s 41 3.8 s 11.0 

EA RNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE: 
BASIC 

Income (loss) from continuing operations ... s .24 s (. 11 ) s .SI s .02 
Income (loss) Crom d iscontinued operations. .00 .00 {.02) {.01) 

Net income (loss) ........................ s .24 s (.11) s 4 1) s 0 1 

DILi 11 ED 
lri ne (loss) from continuing operations. s .24 s (. 11 ) $ .4H s .02 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations. .00 .00 l 02) {.01) 

Ne• income (loss) ............. • • • •• •• •• I s .24 s ( II) s .46 s .01 

Sec uccompanylng notes to con•olidotcd flnanc1nl alutcmenu.. 
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CENDANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In MUUona) 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Ne t ca!ih provided by (used in) opcratlon.s. exclusive or management and 

mortgage programs . . ............ . . . .............................. . 
Merge r-related ch&rges (aedits) ........................ . .... . ........ . 
Merger-related payments .... .. . .. .. . ................................ . 
Discontinued operations ....................... . ..................... . 
Management and mortgage programs: 

Depreciation and amortization under management and mortgage 
programs .. . .... . ..... . .. . . ... ...... . .......................... . 

Mortgage loans held for sale .. . ........... .. . . ..................... . 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVmES ... 

lNVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Property and equipment additions . .... .. . ...... ... .. . ... ............. . 
Loans and investments . . . . . . ................................. , ...... . 
Ne t change in marketable securities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ... . ... . 
Net assets acquired. exclusive or cash acquired and acquisition-related 

payments ... . ..................... ... .......... . ................ . 
Investing activities or discontinued operations ............... . .......... . 
Other. net ................................................... • ...... 

Management and mortgage programs: 
Investment in leases and leased vehicles ............................. . 
Payments received on investment in leases and leased veh1cJes ........ . 
Proceeds from sales and transfers of leases and leased vehicles to third 

parties ......... . .............. . ........... . .......... . .. . .... . 
Equity advances on homes under management ................. . ..... . 
Repayment of advances on homes under management ................ . 
Additions to originated mortgage servicing righlJ .............. . ...... . 
Procccd5 from sales of mortgage servicing rights .................... . 

NET CASH USED IN fNVESTJNG ACTIVITIES .................... . 

1991 1997 

(.U mi.1~1 

s 459.7 s (136.5) 
(42 0) 299.6 

(126.3) (132.5) 
(35.7) (10.4) 

610.7 531 .6 
{l.117.7) 427.7 

{507.0) 959.3 

{251.3) 979.5 

(169.3) (50.1) 
(107.2) ( 16.3) 

12.9 (729.2) 

(2.669.9) (331.6) 
(201.6) (27.1) 

51 4 {7.0) 
(3.08'\ 7) (l.161.3) 

(1 .337.3) ( 1.243.4) 
475.2 437.2 

27.3 63.5 
(3.293.4) (2.136.7) 
3.483.1 2.203.7 
(220.4) (86.0) 

53.6 29.1 

_(811.9) {732.6) 

p .s-;s.6) {1 .893.9) 

Sec accompanying notes to conJOlidated financial staremcnts. 

6 



c-9ANT CORPORATION AND SUBS.IES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH nows (CONTINUED) 

(la MJIUom) 

SiaMotldlJE.ad ,. ... . ,,. 1997 
CA.a ,_.lftl) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds Crom borrowings ................•........... ......... ....... s 3.301.0 s 424.9 
Principal payments on borrowings ... .... ............................. . (420.S) (39.1) 
Issuance of convertible debt ......................................... . S42.6 
Issuance of common stock ......... ... ....... ..... .. ................. . 152.0 66.8 
Purchases of common stock .... . ..................................... . ( 171.3) 
Proceeds from mandatorily redeemable pref erred securities issued by 

sJbsidiaries. net ............................................... ... . 1.447.0 
Other. net ......................................................... . 15.3 

4,485.S 8~9.2 

Management and mortgage programs: 
Proceeds Crom debt issuance or borrowings .......................... . 1.659.S 859.2 
Principal payments on borrowings ............ . ..................... . (1.125.S) ( 1.111.6) 
Net change in short-term borrowings .......................... ...... . 693.4 ~54.9) 

1.227.4 {307.3) 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES ............•.. 5.712.9 S31.9 

Effect or changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents ...... . .. . {16.3) 19.7 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents .............................. . I.S49.7 (362.8) 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period ......... ............... . 477.8 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period .. .... ....................... . s J .549.7 $ J 15.0 

See accompanying notes to consolidated flnancinl statements 
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CENDANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I. Ba.~ls or Presentation 

Cendant Corporation. together with its subsidiaries and its joint ventures {lhe "Company"). i~ a 
leading global provider of consumer and business services. The Company was created through the merger 
(the "Cendant Merger'') of HFS rncorporated ('•HFS") and CUC International Inc. { .. CUC") in 
December 1997. The Company provides all the services formerly provided by each of HFS and CUC. 
including travel services. real estate sel'\iccs and me mbership-based consumer services. 

The consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of June 30, 1998 and December 31. 1997 and the 
consolidated stat.cments of income for the three and bix months ended June 30. 1998 and 1997 and the 
consolidated statements of cash flows for the six mon1hs ended June 30. 1998 and 1997 arc unaudited. The 
accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts and transactions of the Company 
and all wholly-owned subsidiaries. All material intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial ~tatcments 
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principle5 for inlerim linancial 
information and with the requirements of Form 10..Q and Rule 10..01 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly. 
they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting 
principles for compleLC financial statements. 

On April IS. 1998, as a result of the discovery of accounting irregularities in the former CUC business 
units. which are part of the Company's Alliance Marketing segment (formerly lhe Membership ~cgmcnt) . 
the Audit Committee of the Company's Board of Directors initiated an investigation into such matters. 
The Audit Committee's invtstigation h~ since been completed and. as a result of its find ings. the 
Company has restated its previously reported financial results for 1997. 1996 and 1995. The 1998 and 1997 
financial information set forth herein incorporates all relevant information obtained from the investiga­
tion. and reflects the correction or accounting policies which were changed as a result of th~ findings. As 
a result of the accounting irregularities and errors which were discovered during the investigation . the 
Company will file audited restated financial statements for the years ended December 31. 1995 through 
1997 on an amended Form 10..KJ A and will file unaudited restated quarterly financial statements for 1hc 
three months ended March 31 , 1998 and 1997 on an amended Form l()..Q/A. In addition. 1he Company 
will file res tated financial data schedules for each of the quarterly periods in 1997 and 1996. The Company 

·expects 10 file such restated financial statements and financial information with the Securities and 
Exchange Commwion ("SEC") in late August 1998. The Company has 11rovided a condensed 
reconciliation of the financial statement amounts. which were reported in prior filings 10 the restated 
amounts which are included in the financial statements presented in this Form 10..Q (See Note 2). The 
Company believes that the balance sheet at December 31. 1997 as presented in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. will not differ materially Crom the audited December 31. 1997 balance 
~heet , which will be included in the amended Form 10-KJA. 

In the opinion of the Company's management, all adjustments (consisting o f normal recurring 
accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating results for the three 
and six months ended June 30. 1998 are not necessarily indicative of tbe re~ults that may be expected for 
the year ending D~mbcr 31, 1998. See Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations - Impact of New ACCO'Unting Pronouncements for accounting pronounce­
ments not yet adopted. 

1. Restatement 

On August 13, 1998, the Company reported that the Audit Committee's investigation into the 
accounting irregularities and errors in the CUC businesses wJ.S complete. The accompanying restated 
financial statements incorporate all relevant information obtained In the investigation and reflect the 
correction of occountlna pollcic1 which were changed aa o result of the rlndlnp. The Company has 
identified and recorded all corrections arising from the findings or che investigation and the process of 

8 



c.eANT CORPORATION AND suasn>9uES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED f1NANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Conttnued) 

restating the Company's consolidated financial statements. The corrections arc the result or accounting 
irregularities, the misapplication of accounting policies. and the application or accounting policies 
previously applied which were not in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Provided 
below is a summary of the impact or such corrections and a reconciliation of the flnencial results from 
amounts previously reponcd to the restated financial statement amounts. as presented in this quarterly 
report on Form 10.Q. A more detailed explanation or the adjustments, which comprise the aforcmen· 
tioned adjustment categories and a detailed reconciliation of the effects that such adjustments had on the 
annual financial statements Crom 1995 through 1997, will be provided whc11 the Company flies. in late 
August 1998. it.s restated audited financial statements on an amended Form JO.KIA. 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA: 

Net revenue . .... .... . . ...... . . . .. . . . 
Total expenses . ... . .. ... . . .. . ... .. . . . 

Income Crom continuing operalions 
before income taxes .. .. .. ..... .... . 

Provision for income taxes ... . . ...... . 
Minority interest, net ... .. .. . .... . ... . 
Income from continuing operations . ... . 
Loss Crom discontinued operations . .. . . 
Net income (loss) . .. ... . ... ...... . . . . 

Earnings Per Share 
Basic 

Income from continuing operations . 
Income (loss) from disoontlnucd 

operations ........... .. ....... . 
Net income ... . . ... . . . . . ......... . .. . 

Diluted 
Income from continuing operations . 
Income (loss) from discontinued 

operations .. .. . ..... .. . ....... . 
Nel income . . .. ... . .. .. . . ... .. . .. ... . 

Al 

'=::'/ Rt,.n 

SI .436.6 
J.068.l 

368.S 
134.l 

4.9 

229.5 

s 229.5 

s 0.27 

s 0.27 

s 0.26 

s 0.26 

9 

nrtt Moatlll EMed Matdl 31, 19511 

R~ 
ACCIOllada~non DllcoarJaacd ••ma• tin O,eredon 

Cl• allioM) 

$(122.9) $(158.7) 
~) ()78.9) 

(42.3) 20.2 
(15.7) 7.7 

(26.6) 12.5 
~) 

s (26.6) s --

A. 
Rt1t1ted 

$1 ,155.0 
808.6 

346.4 
126.1 

4.9 

215.4 
{12.5) 

s 202.9 

s 0.2() 

{0.02) 

$ 0.24 

s 0.24 

{0.01 ) 

$ 0.23 



CENDANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT>-(Contlnued) 

Net revenue ........................ . 
Total expenses ...................... . 

Income (loss) Crom continuing 
operations before Income taxes ..... . 

Provision for income taxes ........... . 

Income (loss) from continuing 
operations ............ • . ........... 

Income from discontinued operations .. . 

Net income (loss) ................... . 

Earnings Per Share 
Basic 

l:lcome from continuing operations . 
Income Crom discontinued 

operations .. . ........ .. ....... . 

Net income ......................... . 

Diluted 
Income from continuing operations . 
Income from discontinued 

operations . . .................. . 

Net income ......................... . 

Al 
p~ 
R!f!?r1 

Sl.164.1 
886.0 

278.l 
112.3 

16S.8 

s 165.8 

$ 0.21 

$ 0.21 

s 0.19 

s 0.19 

10 

nrec Moetlll EMed Mardi 31, 1997 

A~uu.nu 
J(tday 

Accoatiq EITOft DI coatlHcd 
aad lntriiaftcia l!!rltlou 

(la .UOU) 

$(96.4) .>(109.9) 
(12.4) (102.7) 

(84.0) (7.2) 
...ill.1) ~) 

(62.S) (2.9) 
2.9 

$(62.5) s 

At 
Restaied 

$957.8 
770.9 

186.9 
86.5 

100.4 
2.9 

$103.3 --

s 0 13 

s 0. 13 --
s 0.12 

s 0.12 



Cf9ANT CORPORATION AND SUBSltaRIES 
NOTES TO dllfiSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEM9'rs--(Coadnued) 

Sh MoeDi £Mc4 J•H JO. lJ97 

Al ~--b 

~= A==Emlfl Redele 1>9cMd .. t4 
~____... o,.rldoa• 

Net revenue ............. . . . . . ...... . 
Total expenses ...................... . 

Income (loss) Crom continuing 
operations before income tues ..... . 

Provision for income tues ........ . .. . 

Income (loss) from continuing 
operations .............. . . .. ...... . 

Loss Crom discontinued operations .... . 

Net income (loss) ................... . 

Eaming.s Per Share 
Basic 

Income from continuing operations . 
Loss Crom discontinued operations . 

Net income ......................... . 

Diluted 
Income (loss) from continuing 

$2,458.7 
2.125.8 

332.9 
180.S 

152.4 

s 152.4 

s 0.19 

s 0.19 

operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . S 0. l 8 
Income (loss) Crom dl~ntinued 

operations ............ . ....... . 

Net income ..... . ............. .... . . . $ 0.18 

BALANCE SHEET DATA: 

Total assets ......................... . 
Total liabilities . ..................... . 

Shareholders' equity ..... ............ . 

At = 
$14.851.2 

10,373.7 

s 4.477.5 

11 

(l1 llDou) 

$(267.3) $(209.6) 
~) (209.51 

(198.2) (0.1 ) 
~) ~) 

(141.4) 1.S 
_!.!J) 

$(141.4) s --

Al l>«ulib«r .l I, 1997 

Cl• aiHlotu) 

$(914.S) 
(654.9) 

$(259.6) 

Al 
Rat.ttt>cl 

SJ.981.8 
1.847.2 

134.6 
I 2.2. I 

12.S 
~ 1.5) 

s 11.0 

s 0.02 
(0.01) 

s 0.01 

s 0.02 

(0.Ql) 

s 0.01 

At 
Ratalt'CI 

$1 3.936.7 
9.718.8 

s 4.217.9 



CENDANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Condnued) 

3. Eamlnp Per Shatt 

Basic earnings per share ("EPS") is computed ba:,ed 'iolcly on the weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS reflects all potential dilution of common stock 
and is calculated as follows: 

nrtt Molllll £tMkcl Sb Moa1lu EMlal 
JHC JO. JHc.'30, 

1991 1997 1991 199"1 
(la mllJou. uorpt pn •laatt amou ts) 

Income (loss) Crom continuing 
operations . . .... . ... . . ....... . .... $2:14.5 $(87.9) $430.0 $ 12.5 

Convertible debt interest ... . ... . .... .. 3.2 8.0 

Income (loss) from continuing 
operations, as adjusted . ... . .. .. ..... $217.7 $ (87.9) $438.0 $ !2.5 

Weighted average shares - basic . .... . 850.8 804.2 844.8 803.2 
Potential dilution of common stock: 

Stock options ..... . . . ..... . . . ..... . 29.1 38.l 
Convertible debt . . . ..... . .......... 21.0 24.9 

Weighted average shares - diluted . . .. . 900.9 804.2 907.8 803.2 -- -- --
Basic EPS - continuing operations .. .. $ .24 s (.1 1) s .52 s .02 --
Diluced EPS - continuing operations . . s .24 s (.11) s .48 s .02 -- --
4. ComprehensJ"e Income 

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130 "Reporting Comprc· 
hensive Income" effective January 1, 1998. The statement establishes standards for reporting and display 
of an alternative income measurement and its components in the llnancial statements. 

Components of comprehensive income (loss) are summarized as follows: 

Net income .... .. ....... . ..... ... .... .. ... . ... . .. . ....... . 
Other comprehensive income (loss}. net of tax: 

Currency translation adjustment . . .. ...................... . 
Unrealized loss on marketable securities: 

Unrealized holding gains arising during the period . ...... . . 
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in earnings .. . 

Other comprehensive loss .... . .......... . ..... . ............ . 

Comprehensive income (loss) ..... .. ........ . ....... . ...... . 

Sil Moatlill EMlal 
JHe 30. 

1991 199"1 

Cl• mJUou) 
$413.8 s 11.0 

(20.2) (73.7} 

(1.3) 

....QU> 
$392.3 

__i:!l) 
(78.0) 

$(67.0) 

The components of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) arc as follows: 

Unrealiied loss on marketable securities, net of 1u .... . . . .... . 
Cumulative currency translation adjustment ........... ... .. . . . 
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S. Builnea ComblnatJom 

The acquisitions d iscussed below were accounted Cor using the purchase method of accounting 
Accordingly. assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at their estimated foir values. Excclis 
purchase price over fair value of the underlying net a~sc:ts acquired h allocated to goodwill. Goodwill is 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated benefit periods. ranging from 7 to 40 years. The 
operating results of such acquired companies are included in the Company's con~lidatcd tatcmenh of 
income since the respective dates of acquisition. 

The following table reftects the fair values of assets acqui1 ·d and liabilities assumed in connection 
with the Company's acquisitions consummated and other acquis1t1on·rclatcd payments made durin~ the 
six months ended June 30, 1998. 

Total consideration: 
Cash paid (net of $52.3 million of cash acquired) ....................... . 

Assets acquired ........... ......................................... . 
Liabilities assumed ...... .. ......................................... . 

Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired ........................... . 

Goodwill ... . ......... . ................. . .......................... . 

$2.669.9 

1.152.4 
496.2 

656.2 

$2.013.7 

National Parking Corporation. On April 27. 1998. the Company completed the acqu1.sition of 
National Parking Corporation Limited ("NPC") for $1.6 billion In cash. which included the repayment of 
approximately $227 million of outstanding NPC debt. NPC is comprised of two '\ubstantial operating 
subsidiaries in National Car Parks (''NCP .. ) and Green Flag. NCP is the largest private (non-mun icipal) 
single car park operator in the United Kingdom ("UK") with approximately 500 loca11on1i. Green Flag 1~ 
the third largest roadside assistance group in the UK a"ld offers a wide-range of emergency support and 
rescue services to approximately 3.5 million members. 

Jlorpur Group. On January 20. 1998, the Company completed the acquisition of The I larpur Group 
Ltd. ("Harpur"). a leading fue l card and vehicle management company in the UK. from privately held 
H·G Holdings. Inc. for approximately $186.0 million in cash plus ruture contingent paymcnb of up to 
$20.0 million over the next two years. 

Jackson Hewitt. On January 7.1998. the Company completed the acquisition of JackM>n Hewill Inc 
("Jackson Hewitt"). for approximately $480.0 million in ca'ih. Jackson Hewitt operates the second largest 
tax preparation service franchise system in the Un11ed State.s The Jackson Hewitt frnnch1~c system 
specializes in computerized preparation of federal and state individual income tax returns 

Other 1998 Acquisitio11s and Acquisition - Related Poymmu. The Company ucq uired certain other 
entities for an aggregate purchase price of $348.5 million in ca'ih during the six-month period ended June 
30. 1998. Additionally, the Company made .i SIOO million cash payment to the seller of ReM>rt 
Condominiums International. Inc. in satisfaction of a contingent purchase liability. 

Proforma lnforma11011. The following table reflects the unaudited operating rC\Ult\ from cont1nu· 
ing operations of the Company for the :.ix months ended June 30. 1998 anJ 1997 on ,, proforma haw •. 
wh ich gives effect to the acqubitions of NPC and Jackson Hew111. accounted for under 1he purcha'c 
method of accounting. The remaining acquisltions completed during 1998 were not material to 1he 
operating results of the Company and therefore arc not included an thc pre, forma opcra11n1t re\ult' The 
pro Corma results are not ncccuarily indicative or the operating reo,ull\ thal would ha\e occurrl·d h.1J 1he 
NPC and Jackson Hewitt transactions been consummated on Januuf) I. 1997 nor arc the) intended 10 he 
ind1cati\'c result\ that may occur 1n the future. The underlying pro formo 1nformat1on andudc' the 
amort11.ation expense associated with the nsseb acquired. the Compan) \ hnancin~ arrangcmcn1s. certain 
purcho~e accounting adjustments and the related Income 1ax cff.:ch. 
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Sb Mo•tlu E!Mlfll 
hlK' JO. 

199'7 

(I• .Wlou. "'~'' ~, \llare HIOHb) 

Net revenue from continuing operations ................ . 
Income {loss) Crom continuing operations .. . ........... . . 
Net income (loss) . . . . . ............ . . . ............ . ... . 
Per Share lnrormatlon (diluted): 

Income (loss) from continuing operations ............... . 
Net income (loss) . ...... . ... . . . . . ... . .. .. .......... . 

6. Discontinued Operations 

S2.646.4 S2.290.8 
.i23. I ( 11 -l) 
406.9 ( 12.9) 

.47 

.45 
(.01) 
( 02) 

On August 12. 1998. the Company announced that its Executive Commi11cc or the Board or 
Directors committed to discontinue the Company's consumer software ond clos~1l1ed advcrthing 
businesses by disposing of wholly-owned subsidiaries Cendant Software Corporation ("Software") and 
Hebdo Mag International, Inc. ( .. Hebdo Mag"), respectively. The Company disclosed that it has entered 
int~ a definitive agreement to sell Hebdo Mag to its former 50% owners for 7.1 million i.harcs of Company 
common stock and approximately $410 million in cash. The transaction is expected to generate a gain of 
more than $250 million upon anticipated consummation date 1n the fourth quarter of 19<Jfl \Uhjcct to 
certain conditions. including rcaulatory approval and nnanc1ng by the purcho er The Comr)jny .iho 
disclosed that it has engaged Investment bankers 10 analyze various strategic olternntlvcs in regard to the 
disposition of Software within one year of the measurement dote. The Company anticipates that the 
disposition of Software will result in a significant gain. 

Summarired financial data of discontinued operations are as follows: 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA: 

Net revenue ........ . ..... . .......... 

Loss from operations before income 
taxes ................... . ..... . . . .. 

Benefit from income taxes ............. 

Net loss ........................... . . 

Ne t revenue ........ . ..... .. ......... 

Income before income taxes and 
minority interest ................... 

Provi'liun for income taxes ............ 
Minority interest ..................... 

Net income ........................ . . 

Sonwvt 

1991 1997 
ti• .aiotu) 

$1 30.5 s 50.8 

(8.7) ( 11 0) 
2.4 4.1 

s (6.3) s (6.9) 

nree Moatlll !..._. , .... 
1991 .,,, 

$'74.4 $48.9 

13.8 4.0 
4.7 l.S 
6.4 

s 2.7 s 2.5 --
14 

1991 1997 

S226.3 SI 15. 1 

(36.1) (10. ; ) 
12.8 2.J 

$(23.3) s (7.8) 

'"' 1997 

Sl37.2 S94.5 

20.9 10.2 
7.4 ) I) 

6.4 

s 7.1 s 6.3 -- --
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BALANCE SHEET DATA: 

Al J1111t JO, At Dea.Mr ll, Al J•H lO, At ~r JI, 
1'91 1'97 19111 1'97 

Current assets ............... ... .... . 
Goodwill ........................ . . . 
Other assets ........... .. ........... . 
Total liabilities .... . ... ... ........... . 

Net assets or discontinued operations .. . 

$147.2 
120.8 
74.5 
57.3 

$285.2 

7. Mercu Related Costs And Other Unusual Charges 

Cl• .ilM>u) 

$197.6 s 77.4 
44.1 255.4 
45.7 37.9 

102.2 133.6 

SJ85.2 $237.1 

s 58.6 
169.R 
33.3 

161.9 

s 99 8 

The Company incurred merger-related costs and other unusual chnrges in 1997 of $786.0 million 
associated with and/or coincident to the Cendant Merger. the October 1997 merger with Hebdo Mag 
(collectively, the "Cendant Merger Charge"), the April 1997 merger (the "PHH Merger") with PHH 
Corporation ("PHH") and the January 1997 merger (the ''Spark Merger") with Spark Services. Inc 
{"Spark"). The remaining merger-related reserves at December 31. 1997 and utiliza1ion obuch rcscrvc11 
for the slx months ended June 30, 1998. is summarized by ca1egory of expenditure as follows· 

Rat~ Cult A-1 Cttdlb R~nn 
.. Ul31H7 P•,t-.nts Writt-Off • IOlllCOIDC' •• 6l30i'98 

<I• .iaJouJ 
Professional recs ............. . s 46.8 s (37. J) s - s (7.2) s 2.5 
Personnel related ........ .. ... 156.1 (60.8) (3.5) ( 13.9) 77.9 
Busin~ terminations ....... ... 30.9 ( 11.9) (7.5) (1.6) 9.9 
Facilily rela1ed and other ...... 83.6 ~) --1Q;l) ~) 47.1 

Total .............. .. ...... $317.4 $(126.3) S(l 1.7) $(42.0) $137.4 -- --
The remaining reserves at December 31. 1997 and utill7ation of such rescrvei. for the six month~ 

ended June 30, 1998 is summarized by merger as followii (S millions): 
RC:KrYet Cm A-.el Cttdlu RrHnn 

•• Ul31H7 P1,t111n11 Wri1r·On• lo l•mmr •I 6l30i'98 
Cl• mllJJo .. ) 

Cendant Merger .............. $228.9 s (95.4) s (.9) $(26.5) $106.1 
PHH Merger .... ....... ... . .. 86.3 (30.9) ( 10.8) (15.5) 29.1 
Spark Merger ...... ........... 2.2 2.2 

Total ................. ..... $317.4 $(126.3) $(11.7) $(42.0) $137.4 -- --
Cenda111 Mtrgtr. Remaining ce»ti. arc primarily compmed of St>3.7 million of severance and other 

periionnel related payments. Approximately 70'.l or remaining personnel liahilitieii v.ill be paid or 
otherwise extinguished by December 31, 1998 through the closing and consolida11on ,,(nine European call 
centers. Approximately $23.6 million of outstanding facilit) related exit com "' ill he paid or othcrv.i!>c 
extinguished upon closure of European c.tll centers and other office coniiohda11om. which 'Alli he 
~ubstantially complete in 1998. The majority of the remaining Sl8.8 million of ohhga1 1on<. 'Aili 

substantially be concluded upon successful contract termination nqtotia11on '> The credit' to income 
results from a change in estimate of the liability incurred 

PHH Merger. The remaining S29.l million primarily consiw. of $14 3 million ol \C\'cruncc paymcnh 
to former employees who elected installment payment) through 2001 1nsu·ad of u lump·!i.Urn payment 
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upon termination. The balance is substantially comprised o( contract and leai.c terminn11on paymcnb ,,., 
well a~ write-off of related assets to be abandoned in 1998. The crcditi. to income re,ulls Crom a change 
in esumate of the liability incurred. 

Spark Merger. The remaining S2.2 million liability represents installment\ due in connecuon \\ith a 
terminated contract through April 1999. 

8. Finandn& Transac:dons 

Term Loon Facility. On May 29. 1998. the Company entered into a 36-i·day term lo.in agreement 
with a syndicate of financial institutions which provided for borrowings of S3.Z5 b1lhon (the "Term Loan 
Facility"). The Term Loan facility bears interest at LIBOR plus an applicable LIBOR spread. as dclincd. 
Upon the execution of the Term Loan Facility. temporary credit agreements. which provided for Sl.O 
billion of borrowings. were terminated. The Term Loan Facility contains certain restrictive covenants. 
which arc substantially similar 10 and consistent with the covenants in effect for the Company's ex~ting 
revolving credit agreements. Al June 30, 1998. $1.4 billion of borrowings under the Term Loan Facility 
were classified as lon1Z·lerm based upon the Company's ability and intent to refinance such borrowin~ on 
a long-term basis. The Company used $2 billion of the proceeds from the Term Loan Fac1h1y 10 refinance 
the outstanding borrowings under its revolving credit focihues and intends to use the remainder for the 
acquisition of American Bankers Insurance Group. Inc. and RAC Motoring Sen ices (Sec Note 10) and 
for i;cneral corporate purposes. 

Issuance Of Mondotorily Rtdumable Prt/trrtd Securities. On March 2. 1998. the Company is~ucd 
29.9 million FELINE PRIDES and 2.3 million trust preferred securities and received approximately Sl.4 
billion in gross proceeds therefrom. The FELINE PRIDES consist of 27.6 million Income PRIDES and 
2.3 million Growth PRIDES. each with a face amount o( $50 per PRIDE. The Income PRIDl:.S consist 
of tru)t preferred securities and stock purchase contracts under which the holders will purchase common 
stock from the Company in February 2001. The Growth PRIDES consist or stock purchase contracts 
under which the holders wall purchase common stock from the Company in February 2001 and 1ero 
coupon U.S. Treasury securities. The trust preferred secun11cs will bear interest. in the form or preferred 
stock dividends, at the annual rate of 6.45 percent. Such preferred stock d1v1dends are presented as 
minority interest. net of tax in the consolidated statements of income. The forward purchase contract 
forming a part of the Income PRIDES will pay 1.05 percent annually in the form of a contract adjustment 
paymeni. The forward purchase contract forming a part or the Growth PRIDES will pay I 3 percent 
annually in the form or a contract adjustment payment. The forward purchase contracts call for the holder 
10 purchase the minimum of l.0395 shares and a maximum of 1.3514 shares of Company common stock 
per PRIDES ~ecurity. depending upon the average of the closing price per share of Company common 
stock for a 20 consecutive day period ending in mid-February of 2001. 

Redemption or 4Wli Notes. On May 4, 1998. the Company redeemed all of 1ts outstanding ($14-l.5 
million principal amount) 0'•~ Convenible Senior Notes at a pnce of 103.393~ or the principal amount 
together with interest accrued to the redemption date. Prior to May 4. 1S98. holders of such notes 
exchanged S90.S million or the 4.Y.~ Notes for 2.5 million ~hares of Company common stock. 

Redemption of 61h~ Notes. On April 8, 1998. the Company excrciscd Its option to call 1b b'h'li 
Convcrt1hlc Subordinated Notes (the "6~~ Notes") for redemption on May 11. 1998. in accordance with 
the pruvi,ions or the Indenture relating to the 61h~ Notes. Prior 10 the redemption date. all of the 
out)tand1ng 61h% Notes were converted into 2.1 million ~hares of Company common stock. 

9. lnvfttmmt In Avis Rent A Car, Inc. 

The Company's equity interest in Avis Rent A Car. Inc. ("Avis ") was reduced from 27 .5~ lo 20.41\ 
as a result or a public offering by Avis or its common stock in March 1998 in which the Company sold a 
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portion or its investment in Avis. The Company recogntzcd a pre-tax gain or approx1matcl) S 17 .0 million 
as a result or the sale. which is included in o ther revenue in the con olidated ~tatement or income. 

10. Pmd.lnt Acquisldons 

American Banken IDIUl1Ultt Group, Inc. 

On March 23, 1998. the Company entered into a definitive ngrecmcnt 10 acquire American Banker!I 
Insurance Group, Inc. ("American Bankers") for S67 per share in ca-.h and Mock. ror a~regate 
consideration of approximately $3. 1 billion. The Company intends to purcha\e 23.5 million shares or 
American Bankers at $67 per share through its pending cash tender offer. to he followed hy a merger in 
which the Company will deliver Cendant shares with a value or $67 for each rema1n 1ng ~hare: or American 
Bankers common stock outstsmding. The Company has received anti-trust clearance.• to acquire American 
Bankers. The tender offer is subject to the receipt or tenders representing at lea't 51 percen t of the 
common shares of American Bankers as well as customary clo ing conditions. The trnntiuctaon b expected 
to be completed following the restatement or the Company's financial statemenh. receipt of and approval 
by American Bankers' shareholders and receipt of required regulatory approvulti. which r~quirc re!llated 
financial statements. American Bankers provides affordable. specialty insurance produc1s and services 
through financial Institutions. retailers and other ent ities offering consumer financing. 

ln connection with the Company's proposal to acquire American Bankcri.. the Compan} ha\ a hank 
commitment to provide a $650 million. 364-da> revolving credit faetllly v. h1ch will hcur interest, at the 
option of the Company. at rates based on prime rates. as defined. or LIBOR plus on applrcahh: variable 
margin. 

Acqulsftlon or RAC Motorlna Semca 

On May 21. 1998. the Company announced that it has reached a definitive agreement with the Board 
of Directors of Royal Automobile Club Limited ("RACL") to acquire their RAC Motoring Services 
subsidiary for approximately $735 million lo cash. The sale or RAC Motoring Ser' ices has subsequent!) 
been approved by its shareholders. Closing is subject to certain conditions. including regulator) approval 
and is anticipated to occur in the autumn of 1998. RAC Motoring Sen ices " the 'econd-largest road!>1Je 
assistance company in the UK and also owns the UK's largest driving school compan} 

l J. Company lnvestlpUon And UtlptJon 

On April 15.1998, as a result or the discovery or accounting 1rreguluntb in the former CUC bu'\1ne!>S 
units. which are part or the Company's Alliance Marketing ~gmcnt (formerly the Memhcr,h1p 'egment), 
the Audit Committee of the Company's Board or Director\ in11iatcd an inveMigU11on 1n111 \UCh matt..:rs. 
The Audit Committee's investigation has since been completed and. as u result of m findings. the: 
Company has restated its financial results for the years 1995 through 1997 and the quarterly period' 
previously reported during 1996 and 1997 and the first quarter or 1998. The Compan} expect\ to file the 
following financial statements and other inro"lllation wnh the Sccuntrc!> nnd (:~ch.10ge Commi,'\mn 
( .. SEC") in late August 1998:(1) audited restated financial statements for the )CJr' endl!J December 31. 
1995 through 1997 on an amended Form 10-K/A: (1i) unaud1tl!d restated 1inJnc1al ,t,11ement\ for the 
quarterly periods ended March 31. 1998 and 1997 on an amended form I 0-0 A: und ( 111) r e\tateJ financial 
data schedules for each or the quarterly periods in 1997 and 19'.16. 

Since the Company's announcement or the discovery or \uch accnununl-! 1m.:gul.i11t1e' on Ar11I l:'i. 
1998. and prior to the date hereof. sixty-nine purponcd chi,., acuon lav.,.um .inJ one rnd" idual '""suit 
have been filed against the Company and certain current and former oflicer~ and director' of the 
Company. asserting cl11m~ under the federal sccuri11~ law (the "Federal Sccunt1c\ Action,") Sorn<' ur 
the action~ al o name ~ defendants Merrill L)'llch & Co. and. in one ca\e. C"h.1'l Sl·cur1t1l·~ Inc. 
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underwriters for the Company's PRIDES i.ccuritici. offering: two othcri. abo name Ern\t & Young LLP. 
the C;,mpany's fonncr independent accountants. Sixty-two of the Federal Securit1ci. Actioni. were tiled in 
the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey. ~ix were filed in the United State\ Dhtricl 
Court for the District of Connecticut (including the individual action). one wa' filed in thl! United States 
District Court for the wtcm District of Pcnnsylva nta. and one hos been tikd in New Jcri.ey Superior 
Court. The Federal Securities Actions filed In the District of Connecticut and Ear.tern Di,trict of 
Pennsylvania have been transferred to the District of New Jersey. On June 10. 1998. the Company moved 
10 dismi.s.c; or stay the class action fli ed in New Jersey Superior Court on the ground that. nmong other 
things. it is duplicative of the consolidated federal actions: a decision on that motion b pending. 

Certain of the Federal Securities Actions purport 10 be brought on behalr of purchu\cr' of the 
Company's common stock and/or options on common Mock during various pcric>d,, mo~t commonly from 
May 28, 1997 through April J 5. 1998 (although the nlleged class pc nods begin as early as March 21. I 995 
und end as late as July IS, 1998). Others claim to be brought on behalf of persons who exchanged common 
stock or HFS for the Company's common stock coincident with the Cendant Merger. Some plaintiffs 
purport to represent both of these types of investors. In addition. eight actions pending in the D1s1nct of 
New Jersey and one action pending in New Jersey Superior Court purport to be brought. either in their 
entirety or in part. on behalf of purchasers of the Company's PRIDES securities offering. The complnmt~ 
in the Federal Securities Actions allege. among other things. that as a result of accounting irreguloritic~. 
the Company's previously issued financial stntcmcnL'I were materially false and misleading and that the 
dcfendanL'I knew or should have known that these financial statements caused and the Company's 
common stock prices to rise artificially. The Federal Securities Actions variously allege violntioni. of 
Section lO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") and SEC Ruic 10b·5 
promulgated thereunder. Section l4(a) of the Exchange Act and SEC Ruic 14a·9 promulgated 
thereunder. Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act, and Sections 11. 12 and 15 or the Securities Act of 1933. 
as amended (the ··Sccurilies Act"). Certain actions alsu allege violation of common law. The individual 
action also alleges violations of Section 18(a) of the Exchange Act and the Florida securities law. fhe clas~ 
action complaints seek damages in unspecified amounts. The individual action !leeks damage' 1n the 
amoun t of approximately $9 million plus interest and expenses. 

On May 29, 1998. United States Magistrate Judge Joel A. Pisano entered an order coni.olidating the 
50 Federal Securities Actions that had at that time been filed in the United States District Court for the 
District of New Jersey. under the caption 

In re: Cendant Corporation Litigation. Ma.citer File No. 98-1664 (WHW). Pursuant to the Order. all 
related actions subsequently filed in the District of New Jersey arc also to be consolidated under that 
caption. On August 4. 1998. United States District Judge William H. Walls selected lead plaintiffs for the 
consolidated actions. He alc;o ordered that applications seeking appointment as lead counsel to rcprc:1i::-:1 
the lend plaintiffs are to be filed with the Court by Scpt~mbcr 17. 1998. 

In addition. on Aprll 27. 1998 a shareholder derivative action, Dcutch v. Silverman . ct al., No. 98-1998 
(WHW). was filed in the United States District Court for The District of New Jersey against certain or the 
Company's current and former directors and officers; The Bear Stl.!arns Comp;,nies. Inc .• Bear Stearn~ & 
Co .. Inc. and. as a nominal party, the Company. The complaint alleges that certain indiv1du11I ofhcer' .ind 
directors or the Company breached their fiduciary duties by JM:lllng ' hares of the Company's stock while 
in p<l"e~'ion of non-public materlol lnfonnation concerning accounting irregularities. The complaint also 
alleges various other breaches of fiduciary duty. mismanagement. negligence and corporate waste and 
seeks damages on behalf of the Company. 

Another action. entitled Corwin v. SiJverman. et ol.. No. 16347-NC. was filed o, April 29. 1998 in the 
Court of Chancery for the State of Delaware. The Corwin Action is purportedly brought on behalf of a 
class of all i.hareholders of HFS who exchanged their HFS shares for Company shares in conncctton with 
the Cendant Merger. and names as deCendan&s HF'S and twelve individuals who were din.'Ctor<t of HFS. 
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The complaint in the Corwin Action alleges that the defendanlS breached their fiduciary duties or loyalty. 
good faith, care and candor in connection with the Cendant Merger. in that they failed to properly 
investigate the operations and financial statements of the Company before approving the Cendant Merger 
at an allegedly inadequate price. The Corwin Action seeks. among other things. recision or the Cendant 
Merger and compensation for aJl losses and damages suffered in connection therewith. 

While it is not feasible to predict or determine the final outcome of these proceedings or to estimate 
the amounts or potential range of loss with respect to these matters. management believes that an adverse 
outcome with respect to such proceedings could have a material adverse impact on the financial condition. 
results of operations and cash ftows of the Company. 

The staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") and the United States Allorncy 
for the District of New Jersey are conducting investigations relating to the matters referenced above. The 
SEC staff has advised the Company that Its inquiry should not be oonstrucd a,. an indication by the SEC 
or its staff that any violations of law have occurred. 

1l. JnwestJptJon Related COii• 

Costs associated with accounting errors arc comprised of professional fees, public relations costs and 
include $4.2 million of incremental debt service due to the exclusion from traditional financing source~ 
during the period which the Company's financial statements were not effective. 
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ITEM 2-MANAGEMEN'rS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

General Overview 

In December 1997. Cendant Corporation (the .. Company .. ) was crea1ed through lhc merger (lhc 
··Cendant Merger'") or HFS Incorporated ("HFS .. ) and CUC lnterna1ional Inc. ("'CUC .. ). The Company 
is one of lhc foremcxt consumer and business services companies in Lhe world. The combination of HFS 
and CUC provides each of lhe Company's businesses new access to consumer conlacb lhrough the 
Company'o; expanded customer base, while providing such businesses wilh the direct marketing expertise 
necessary to successfully cross·market within its existing business units. 

The Company provides fee.based services to consumers within the Travel. Real Es1ate and Alliance 
Marke1ing b~iness segments. The Company generally docll nol own the asse1s or share lhe risks 
associated wilh the underlying businesses of its cuslomers. In lhc Travel Services segment. the Company 
is the world's largest franchisor or lodging facilities and rental car facilities. the lcal..ling provider of 
vacation timeshare exchange services and a leading provider or international Heel management i.erviccs. 
In lhe Real Estate Services segment. the Company is both the world's largest franchisor or residential real 
estate brokerage offices and provider of corporate relocation services and is a leading mortgage lender in 
the United States. In the Alliance Marketing segment. the Company is a leading provider or mcmbcr"ihip 
consumer services and products. 

On April 15. 1998. as a result or the discovery or accounting irregularities in former CUC business 
units, the Audit Commillee of the Company's Board of Directors ( .. Audit Committee") initiated an 
investigation into such ma11crs. The Audit Committee recently completed i1s investiga1ion in10 such 
mailers. The Company has restated its fi nancial results for the years 1995 through 1997 and lhe quarterly 
periods during 1996 through March J998 in August 1998. The financial informa1ion con1aincd herein has 
been rcs1atcd lo incorporate all relevant information oblained from lhe aforemen1ioncd investigation. 

Results or Operations-Three Months Ended June 30, 1998 VI ThrH Months Ended June 30, 1997 
1991 1997 VAR 

ll• mllUou, uc.cpt p« 1Ur-e llDC>Hh) 

Revenue .................. . ........ . ........... . s 1.306.3 s 1.024.0 28% 
Operaling expenses ...... . .. . ..... . ......... . .... . 945.3 764.2 24% 
Interest ....... . . . ...... . ..... .. ..... . ..... . ... . . 23.6 12.8 84% 
Merger related and olher unusual charges (credits) .. . (42.0) 299.6 
lnves1iga1ion related costs ..................... .. . . 32.2 

Income from continuing operations( I) .. . .... . ... . 347.2 (52.6) 

( I ) Before income laxes and minority interest. 

Income from continuing operations increased $399.8 million. The increase was attributable an pan lo 
$282.3 million (28%) increases in revenue which exceeded $181.1 million (24%) incrcruies in operat ing 
expenses. Approximately $24.8 million or the above net increase was attributable lo acquired 1998 
operations white internal growth in the travel and real e,tate segments contri.,uted 31%and69% increases 
in operating income, respectively. The absence of merger related and unusual charges ("Unusual 
Charges") in the second quarter of 1998 contributed $341.6 million of incremen1al pre-lax income. The 
Company completed merger transactions with PHH Corporation ("PHH") and Spark Services. Inc. 
(MSpark") in 1997 and incurred approximately $3M million of Unusual Charges. Unusual Charges relate 
to costs from the consolidation or several corporate relocation businesses including the world's two 
largest. professional recs, the termination or corporate office functions and exiting immaterial non-core 
businesses. The Company continues to evaluate ill remaining restructuring liabili1ie . The Company 
recorded a $42.0 million credit as.sociated with Unusual Charges reprcsenllng lhe difference between 
estimated and incurred exit cosu including severance. lease buy-outs and professional fees assoc1a1ed with 
lhe merger. 
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The above increases Ancome Crom continuing operations wer&-iriially offsel by SJ0.8 million 
(84~) and S32.2 million in~ in interest expense and costs assoc1a1~ilh resoh•ing accoun1i1.0 error:. 
discovered in 1he financial statements or the former CUC busine ~ unil'i. rcspcc11vcly The 1ncrca\l' in 
interest expense wa.s primarily attributable to borrowings under revolving crcd11 fac1ht1cs to finance more 
than $2.6 billion of Company acquisitions including 1he St .6 billion acquisition of National Parking 
Corporation on April 27. 1998. 

The Company continues 10 r xccule strategics to optimize ils cffcclivc tax rate. The execution of such 
lax minim1za1ion strategics. the favorable impact of lower 1nx rates in in1cmational juri~ictions and lov.er 
non-deductible amortization expense as a percentage of pre-lax income have con1rihu1ed 10 a decrease in 
the Company's effective 1u rate to 36% in 1998. 

Segment Disamlon 

In addition to the above analysis of consolidated financial rcsuhli. the following is an analysis of lhe 
operating performance or the segments and businc~ units of 1hc Company excluding Unusual Charge,. 
The following segment analysis of results of operations discusses operating income (profib excluding 
interest, laxes. minority interest expense. Unusual Charges and inveMigation costs). 

Travel Servtca Sepnent 

The Company operates business units that provide a wide spectrum or 11erviccli necessary to dome,t1c 
and international travelers. The Company i~ the world'!! largest franch1wr of nallonally rccogn11ed hotel 
brands and car rental operations (Avis). which arc responsible for 16'k of all hotel room' sold and 25G: 
of all cars rented in the United Slates. respectively. Royalty revenue is received from franchisees under 
coniracts that generally range from JO to 50 yean1 in duration. The Company 1s the world's larges! 
p1ovider of timeshare exchange services (RCI) to timeshare owners under one to three year membership 
programs which require both exchange fees for swapping vacaiion weeks and recurring and renewal 
membership rees. Travelers that may or may not participate in 1he above cro!ls-marketed ~rvicc' 
frequently receive Value-Added Tax (''VAT") refunds from mternalional countnc!> through Global 
Refund. the largest VAT refund facilitaior worldwide. Travel Ser,•1ce\ opera1ing unit!> al'>o provide Oect 
managemenl and leasing. 

The Company acquired Na1ional Parking Corporation ("NPC") OI'. April 27. 1998. NPC owns 
National Car Park ("NCP"), the largest private (non-municipal) !>ingle car park operaior m lhe Uni1ed 
Kingdom ("U K'') with approximalely 500 loca1ion!i. NPC also owni. Green Flag. !he 1h1rd largest roadside 
assis1ancc group in the UK. which offers a wide-range of emergency suppon and rc\Cuc services to 
approximately 3.5 million members. 

Tilrtt ~·"•llu E11dtd J •u JO. 

Openda1 laeo111t 1998 1997 VuiHR" 

(111 mlUl011\) 

Ne1 revenue .................................... . $475.2 $319.7 49't 
Operating expenses ......................... . .. •. . 313.8 20-i.2 54'1-

Operating income .....................••..•.... . . $161.4 s 115.5 4011 
-- --

Opcraling income incre~ed $45.9 m1lhon (~)as a re!>ult or double d1gi1 percentage poml gro\\th 
in business units compri~111g 98'l of combined Travel Segment opcrntinb income. Re,enuc mcrca~cd 
SISS S million (49%) whik cxpcn!lei; increased Sl o<J.6 million (~4'< ). On a compnrahk hi"i'. e>.duc.Jing the 
1998 acquic:itions of NP<.. ind Harpur, operating income incrcu,cd S2l N mllhon (~I',) \\hilc opcr.Jting 
margin\ increased from 36 , to 39'\. 

Lodging operating income ancrca.sed SI 2 5 million (28t;.) due 10 a S9 I m1lh<>n (W~) mcrca'>c 1n 
revenue and a S3.4 million (5~) decrease 1n cxpen!I~ ' The rc,cnue incrca~c '' pnmonh Jul Ill a Still 
milhon increase in franchise fees, including a S2.6 m1lhon (fl"•) 1m:rl'•"c 1n ruy11lt1c' und Sl fl rn1lhun 
incrco'>c In Initial fec5 from i.nlcs of mll.!ilcr ltccn\C ogrccmcnt' m Luropc The r<>)'Blt) incrco!>c rc\ulted 
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Crom a 2% increase in franchisee growth and a 2% increase in revenue per available room ("REVPA R") 
at franchised hotels. Expenses are relatively fixed within the lodging business and therefore. operating 
margins increased as a result of the corresponding revenue growth. In addition. expenses within the 
lodging business unit decrcase<l <.Jue to a reduction of corporate overhead alloc<ited lo the hx.lging business 
:.egmcn1 as the Company leveraged its corporate infrastructure among more busincMcs. Timeshare 
operating income hcreased $5.1 million (2890) due 10 an S8.7 million (IO<"t> ) increase in revenue net of$3.6 
million (5'ic) increased expenses. The revenue increase is primarily due 10 a S3.8 million (9'e) increase in 
exchange revenue and a $2.4 million (8%) increa'!e in subscription revenue. The exchange revenue 
increase is the result or a 7% increase in pricing. while the incre~ in subscription revenue is the result 
of a 7% increase in membership growth. Car rental operating income increased $6.4 million {3l %) on a 
$9.5 million (25%) increase in revenue The operating income increase primarily acsultcd from a $4.1 
million increase in international license fees and a $1.2 million (5%) increase in royalty. Royalty revenue 
increased as a result or a 3% increase in pricing and a 4% increase in rental days. Fleet excluding 
incremental results from the Company's January 1998 acquisition of Harpur contributed a $3.5 million 
(14%) increase in operating income due primarily to a $4.5 million ( 13%) increase in leasing revenue and 
a $3.8 million (ll %) increase in service revenue. The increase in vehicle leasing is duc to a 7% increase 
in number of leases and a 6% increase in pricing. The increase in servicing revenue is <.Jue to an 11 '\ 
increase in the number of service cards and a 7% increase in pricing. Including Harpur. Fleet operating 
income increased $7.8 million (31%). Harpur contributed $4.3 million of operating income. which 
included $8.2 million of revenue and $3.9 million of operating expenses. NPC contributed $17.7 million 
of operating income in 1998 ror the two months of Company ownership. which included St 12.5 million of 
revenue and $94.8 million or operating expenses. 

Real Estate Serrices Segment 

The Company operates business units that provide a range or services related 10 home sales. 
principally In the United States. The Company Is the world's largest franchisor of real estate brokerage 
office~ through its CENTURY 21. Coldwell Banke~ and ERA• franchise brands, which were involved 
in more than 25% of homes sold in the United Stales in 1997. Similar to the Travel Services Segment 
franchise business, the Company receives royalty revenue from approximately 11.500 franchise brokerage 
offices under contracts with terms ranging from 5 to 50 years. The Company operates the world's largest 
provider of corporate employee relocation services and receives fees for providing services such as selling 
relocating employees' homes (without recourse to the Company). assisting the relocating employee in 
finding a home or providing an array of services such as moving household goods. expense reporting and 
others. The Company also operates the largest in-bound mortgage telemarketing opcrauon in the United 
Stales. Cendant Mortgage Corporation ("Mortgage") generates origination profits from the sale of 
mortgage notes. generally within 45 days of origination but retains recurring servicing revenue ) trcams 
over the life of the mortgage. In addition. the Company is a distributor of welcome packages to new 
homeowners. which provide discounts from local merchants. Each Real Estate Services business provides 
customer referrals from other Real Estate Services businesses as well as a database for pro.,pective 
Alliance Marketing Segment cross selling. 

nrtt Moatb Ellfkct Ju~ JO. 

OperatJa1 lacotM 1991 199'1 \'llrlaa« 

tr. mlWou) 

Net revenue ..... . ..... . . ....... ................ . $354.9 $246.8 -M% 

Operaung expcn5es .........•..................... 197.4 153.5 29% 

Operating income ............................... . $157.5 s 93.3 69% -- --
Operating income increased $64.2 million (69%) as a result of increa~ in the Renl Es1n1c rronchiiic 

and Mongage bu5incss units. Revenue incrcaM:d $108. l million (44%) while cxpcn' ·s incrca~cll only $-13.9 
million (29111). Roal Estate franchise operating Income grew $42.l million (89%) primarily as a result of 
a $34.2 million increase in royalty revenue and a $10.6 million increase in preferred alliance revenue 
(revenue generated from preferred allianc.c partners seeking access to franchisees and franchise 
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cui.tomers). whjle expenseAreased only SS.8 mi llion The increase iAvahy revenue wa., due to a 24~ 
increase in home sale volull' and a 17% increaM: in the average price R omes sold in the United States. 
Expenses remained relatively flat due to their fixed nature increasing the operating margin within the 
Real Estate franchise business by JI percentage poinb Operating income at the Mortgage husine ·s unit 
increased $23.9 million ( J 28%) driven primarily by a $4.1 billion ( 16Sc::t-) increase in mortgage ongina11on\. 
The increase in mortgage originations generated $50 I milhon of additional production revenue while 
mortgage related expenses (primarily production related) increa1ted only $27.5 million. Operating income 
at the Relocation business unit decreased S2.2 million (9%) primarily as a result of $6.5 million of 
increased information technology systems support and facility cosb. which reduced the operating margin 
by 3 percentage points. The Company commiued lo a $40 million. two-year capital expcmhturc: program 
to combine the PHH and Coldwell Banker Corporation operating and cu, tomer dc:li,c:1y J.)'!> tem~ 
following the April 1997 merger of HFS and PHH. 

Alliance Marke1Jn1 Segment 

The Company derives it Alliance Marketing revenue principally from mc:mhcr\hrp product fee,, 
insurance premiums and product sale.,. The Alliance Marketing segment 1s divided into three dl\'l\1on, · 
individual membership ("Individual Memtx:r hip"): insurancc/whol~ale (" lnsurnncc/Wholesnlc"); ant.I 
life-; tyle ("Lifestyle"). Individual Membership. with more than 33 million memhcri.hipi.. provide'I 
customers with access to a variety of product.\ and 'l<!rvlcci. in such areas as retail shopping. travel. auto. 
dining and home improvement. Insurance/Whole ale. with nearly 31 million cui.tomeri.. markets and 
administers insurance products. primarily occidental death insurance. and also provide~ products and 
services such as checking account enhancement packages. financial producti. and d1..count program!. to 
customers of various financial institutions. Lifestyle. with over I J million customer!>. pro\•1dc' customer' 
with unique products and services that arc designed to enhance a customer's purcha'ling pov.cr. 

Alliance Marketing growth is generated primarily from direct marketing to coni.umcri. or by reaching 
corsumers through businesses such as banks. credit card and travel compan1e'I thot pro' idc access to new 
members and customers as a service enhancement to their customeri.. Commencing wuh the Cendant 
Merger, alliance marketing businesses have unfcllcrcd access to the Company\ Truvel Segment 
businesses that account for 1 of 6 U.S. hotel rooms sold . I of 4 cars rented in the U.S. and more than 70'J 
or timeshare reson vacation exchanges worldwide. Mcmhcrship bu,inci.scs uli.o have accc~ to Real 
Estate Services serrnent businesses that participate in more than 25'\ of U.S home i.alei.. more than 50'\­
of corporate cmr .,yee relocations and homebuyers underlying nearly $25 billion of annual mortgage 
onginauons. 

Tllttt Moeclu t.lldC"CI Jett JO. 

19911 1997 \ariUtt 

(11 mlDiol\) 

Net revenue .................................... . S~l 16 $355.9 J6t; 
Operating expensci. ........................•.. . ... 373.0 3365 11 ~ 

Opcra11ng income . . ..... . . s 38.6 s 19.4 99r; -- --
Operating mcome increased SJ 9., m1ll1on (99<.l) to $31<.6 m1lhon du" to ii s~~ 7 m1lhon rcH~nuc 

increa!>C ( 16t.l-) being part ially of!sct h) an incrcMc of $36 ~ mlllion C 11 ,., I upcratm~· npcn<o·t'' 

lndiv1d1J .. 1 Membership operatmg income rncrca\Cd SI S 4 m1lh11n Jmt.•n tl\ a S~!'\"' m1ll1on C~J'i:) 
increase in rcvcnut.-s result1n1 from a S.2 mrlhun 1ncrcu\e 1n total mcmhcr'lhtfl" ~:•uplcd v.1th an incrcJ-.c 
in average mcmbcr!lh1p fee\ Thii. re'"cnue growth v.a!I partial!) off\ct h~ a S:?3.S m1llmn (I ~'{) 1nc:rca-.c 
in marketing and other CllpcnM:~ related to ocqumng and \en icing the rncrea-.cd mcm~f\h1p llJ'c 
Included rn the Individual Membcf')h1p d1vis1on for the M:cond qu.ukr "' •" >.& l m1lhon of o~r.111ng 
income related to the acquisition of Credent lob Sen 1cc<i lntcrna11unnl. Inc in April 199' ln .. urancc 
Wholesale operating income lncrcMCd $6.2 million (21 'l) .t'I a rci.ult of a S<J 3 mtlhon (7'1 ) rncrca\c 1n 
revenu~. fueled n two million 1ncrea~ in iMurance and v.hol~alc customc~. paruall) 0H-.e1 h\ a $'\ I 
million (3~) increase in expenses related 10 markct1na and M:rv1crng cxpcn..c) I 1k ·t)lc ttcncratt·J an 
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operating loss or $12.9 million compared to an operating loss or SIS.2 million for the second qu3rtcr of 
1997. This division is comprised or fi~e separate businesses. the largest of which is Entertiunmcnt 
Publications ("EP.1b"). which generated an operatJng loss of SIS.I million. a $4.3 million improvement 
from the $19.4 million operating loss generated in the second quarter of 1997. The Company"s EPub 
business is seasonal whereby o'er 851\ or the revenues arc generated in 1hc ~cond half of 1hc year. 
During the second quarter EPub received $8.7 million cos1 rcimbu~ment~ for third party saks acuv1t1cs 
mcurred prior 10 the second quarter or 1998. 

Other Segment 

The Company operates a variety or other businesses in :iddition 10 those which comprise each or the 
Company's core business segments. Such business operations and Iran actions are pnmanly compnscd or 
(i) franchising the second largest tax preparation service system in the United States as a rcsull of the 
Company's first quarter 1998 acquisition of Jackson Hewill; (ii) information technology and rc:.crva11on 
system support services provided to the car rental and hotel industry (the WWl1.COm Businc "): (i11) casino 
credit information and marketing services (the "Casino Marketing Business") and (iv) 1hc cqully in 
earnings from the Company's Investment in the Avis Rent A Car. Inc. ( .. Avis") car rental company. 

Tllrtt Mom• Elldd J•M JO. 

Operatlq taco- 1991 1997 Variallft 

II• .WO..) 

Net revenues ................................... . $64.6 SIOl.6 (36~) 

Operating expenses .............................. . 61.1 70.0 ( 13%) 

Operating income ............................... . s 3.5 s 31.6 (89~) --
Operating income decreased S28.l million (89'*1) primarily as a result or a $1 6.6 milhon reduction 1n 

equity in earnings or Avis and S7.9 million of operating income associated with Interval International. Inc. 
(" Interval") which was sold in December 1997. The Company owned IOO'l of Avis common stock pnor 
to its October 1997 initial public offering and currently owns 20~. 

Results of OpenlJons-Slx Months Ended June 30, 1998 vs Six Months Ended June 30, 1997 

1991 1997 
(I• ailUou, H«pt pin Wtt UM>Hb) 

Revenue ............ . .......................... . $2.461.2 Sl.981.8 24% 
Operating expenses .............................. . 1.734.6 1.524.8 14% 
Interest. net ........... .. ....................... . 42.8 22.8 88% 
Merger related end other unusual charges .......... . ( 42.0) 299.6 
Investigation related costs ........................ . 32.2 

Income from con tinuing operations ............. . 693.6 134 6 

Income from continuing operations increased $559 0 million The incrcnsc was aunbutublc in p1.irt to 

$479.4 million (24%) increases In revenue which ciccccded $210.0 million (14'*1) increas~ in operating 
•·xpenscs. ApproxJmetely $52.2 mtlhon of the above net increase was attributuble 10 acquired 1998 
operations while internal growth in the travel and real e11a1e segments contributed 20% and 87'l increases 
in operating income. respectively. The change in estimates related to unusual charges rcsulh an a credit 
of $42.0 compa1 ed to an expense or $299 6 in the comparable prior period accounted for $341.6 million 
of pre-tax income. 

The above increases in income from continuing operat:">ns were partially offset by $20.0 million 
(88%) and S32.2 million increases in Interest expense and costs associated with resolving accounting errors 
discovered in the financial statements or the fonncr CUC business unit), respectively. fhc tncrca11c In 
interest expense was primarily 1ttnbu11ble 10 borrowlnp under revolving credit faciliucs to llnancc more 
th3n S2.6 b1lhon or company acquisitions including the SI 6 btlhon acquisition of NPC on Apnl 27. 1998. 
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The Company c:onlin'6> citecute 1\ratcgi~ to opt1mfac its effcqAtax rate. The execution of such 
tax minimization 1trategics~e favorable impact of lower tax rates in u•ational jurisdictions and lower 
non-deductible amortization expense as a percentage or prc·lax income have contributed to a decrease in 
the Company's effective tu rate to 36,., in 1998. 

Discontinued operations. consisting of the Company\ consumer software and classilicd 1>dvertising 
businesses generated $16.2 million or pre-tu operating losses in 1998 compared to $1.S million of 1997 
operating losses, incremental consumer software lossc!it or $25.9 million rcnect a SI I J.2 million increase 
in sales offset by $137.1 million of escalating development and markc11ng costs. The cla"Hied advertising 
business contributed a Sl 1.1 million (l<W,.,) increa>c in operating Income due primarily to profit'> from 
companies acquired during an aggressive pre-merger consohdat1on plan. 

Segment Discussion 

In addition to the above analysis of consolidated financial results. management evaluate~ the 
operating performance of iu segments and business units excluding Unusual Charges The following 
segment analysis of results of operations discussc!> operating income (profilll excluding 1n1ercst 1a.xc'i. 
mmority interest expense. Unusual Charges and investigation costs). 

Travel Senices Sepnent 

Sb M0ttt~ E.ckd JH~ .lO, 

1991 1997 Varla1ttt 

Cla mUIJoa1) 

Net revenues ...................... ....... .... .. . $822.9 $6'.\6.I 291'!f 
Operating expenses.... . ....... ... .. . ....... .... . SI 9.0 41 2.9 26'l 

Operating income ........ ... . .... . ...... ..... ... . $303.9 $223.2 36'1 -- --
Operating income inaeascd S80.7 million (36~) as a rcsuh of double-digit percentage poinl gro~1h 

in business units comprising 98% of combmed Travel Segment operaung income Rc,enuc increased 
$186.8 million (2~) while expenses increased only $106.1 milhon (26~) . On a compurnhlc basis. 
excluding the I 998 acquisitioni. of NPC and Harpur. operating income increased S55.6 million (25'l- ). 

Lodging operating income increased $20.8 m1lhon (26"i ) due to u SI 4 m1lhun (7~) m~rea,c in 
revenue and a $6.8 million reduction in operating expenses. The revenue increa'c i1> pnmaral)• due to a 
$12.2 million increase in franchise fees including a $4 7 m1lhon (6'l-) 1ncrcaM: in royally revenue and sales 
of master license agreements in Europe. The royalty increase rcc;ulted from a 2~ ancrca!>C an royalt) rate 
and a 2% increase in REVPAR at franchised hotel'>. Operating margins increased with the rc,cnuc growth 
as expenses in the lodging business unu arc relatively fixed. In addition. expenses within the lodging 
business unit decreased due to a reduction or corporate overhead allocated to the lodging hu,iness unit 
in I 998. consi1>tcnt with the changes in the Company\ infrastructure. 

Timeshare operating income increased SI 8.2 mil hon ( -l7'l') resulting from an $8.8 million (9'l) 
increase in exchange revenue and a $4.0 million (6'l) mcrcase 1n membership re~. Wh ile the exchange 
fee increase was driven by a 7% pricing inacaM:. suh'iCTiption revenue ancreMCd due to a 6~ mcn:asc in 
memberships. Car rental operating income increased $1 6.4 m1lhon (4f<:\) on a $20 1 m1lhon (28't ) 
increa!>C in revenue. The operating incomi; increaric primun l)' rc~ultcd fr'lm a SI0.5 m1ll1on mcrca-.c in 
franchise foes including $8.6 million a~iatcd with international liccnr;e fee\ and a $1.IJ million incrcnsc 
in royalty. Acct, excluding Harpur. had " U million ( 11 'l) inm:ui.e in operating income due to n $4 9 
million (7%) increase m vehicle leasing 1 .uc ond a S6 9 million ( 1 ~) 1ncrca..c an \ Cf' 1n· t'.1td '"'' cnuc' 
Including Harpur. Acct operating income lncrea,ed $13.4 m1lhon (:!3'\) lfarpur contnhuh:d S7 .J m1ll1un 
of operating income. which included $1 5.6 million of revenue und SK2 m1lhon or opcrJllng expcn'>c\ 

NPC contributed Sl7.7 million of operating income dunng the two months of the Company'!> 
ownership including $112.S million of revenue and $94.8 million or operating upcnsci.. 
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Real E11tate Semtts Sepnent 

SU Mo.tu Eaded J•H JO, 

Or;nul•& l•come 1991 1997 Vmutt 

Cl• miDlo•ll 

Net revenue . . . .......................... . $634.0 $437.9 45<(. 
Operating ..:xpenscs ...... . ....................... . 369.6 296.7 25% 

Operating income ............................... . ~264A s1.a1.2 87'li -- --
Operating income increased $123.2 million (87%) primarily driven by increases in the Real Estate 

franchise and Mortgage business units. Revenue increased $196.1 million (-'SC\) while expcn'c" increased 
only $72.9 milhon (25%). Real Estate franchise operating Income grew $68.S milhon (102~) primarily :u 
a result "' a $57. l million increase in royalty revenue and a S 11.3 million increase in preferred alliance 
revenue while expenses increased only $8.3 million. The increase in royalty revenue wa due to a 231J'C 
increase in home sale volume and a 16% increase in the average price or homes sold in the United States. 
Expenses remained relatively Oat due to their fixed nature. increasing the operating margin within the 
Real Estate franchise business unit 15 percentage points. Operating income at the Mortgage business unit 
increased $46.8 million (149%) driven primarily by a $6.9 billion (163%) increase in mortgage originations. 
The increase in mortgage originations generated $84.8 million additional production revenue while 
mortgage related expenses (primarily production related) only increased $49.0 million. Operating income 
at the Relocation business unit grew $8.3 million (21%) on a revenue increase o f $21.2 million. The 
revenue increase primarily resulted from increases in relocation referrals which were offset by a S6.5 
million in<'rease in second quarter information technology system "lupport and facility cosu associated 
with the consolidation of former PHH and Coldwell Banker operating and customer delivery systems. 

Alliance Marketln1 Sepnent 

Sb Mo.tlllt Ellded JH~ JO. 

1991 1'97 Varla•tt 

ti• mlllknu) 

Net revenues .......................... .... .. .. . . $802.1 $714.0 12% 
Operating expensc"l .............................. . 724.3 665.0 9% 

Operating income ............... .. ..... . ........ . s 77.8 s .a9.0 59% -- --
Operating income increased $28.8 million (59%) to $77.8 million increase due to an $88. l million 

revenue increase (12%) being partially offset by an increase of $59.3 million (9%) increase in operating 
expenses. 

Individual Membership operating income increased $22.1 million dnvcn by a $58.l million (17"') 
increase in revenues resulting from a 5.2 million increase in total memberships coupled with an increase 
in average membership fees. This revenue growth was partially offset by a $26.7 million (8~) increase in 
marketing and other expenses related to acquiring and sc.rvicing the increased membership bilSc. Included 
.n Individual Membership for the first six months or 1998 was $4.3 million or operating income related to 
the ac4ui~ition or Cred11ials Services International lnc. in April 1998. lnsuranc~hole"lale operating 
income increased $20.8 million, {39%). as a result of $28.6 million ( 12%) incrc~e in revenues, due 
primarily to a 2 million increase in insurance and wholesale customers. partially oUset by a $7.7 million 
(4%) increase in expenses related to marketing and servicing expenses. Lifestyle pcneratcd an operating 
lo"lS or $31 I million compared to an operating loss or Sl7.1 million ror the second quarter of 1997 Thai. 
diVl!.IOn i!t comprised or flvc s.cparate businesses. the largest or which is Epub which generated an 
operating loss of $37.1 million during lhe first six months of 1998 comp111ed to an operating loss or $33.3 
million for the first six months of 1997. EPub revenues for this six month 1998 period totaled $15.5 million. 
a decline or $10.8 million from the comparable period in 1997. This de,.line an revenues is due largely to 
a change in the proportion of sales generated from community group d1strlbuLion chnnncb. (which 
generate revenues during the 3rd. 4th and lst quarters) to school distribution channels (which genernte 
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a higher proportion or rev.s during the 3rd and 4th quarters). Add6ally. during the first sue month!> 
of 1998. EPub received $8. illion of cost reimbursement for third pllff sales act1v1tcs incurred prior to 
the second quarter of 1998. 

Other Sepnent 

Sh Mot1tla. Eit4tod J .. , JO, 

1991 1997 ,,~ 

Cl• .-aio•\) 

Net revenues ............................ ....... . $202.2 $193.9 4% 
Operating expenses ......................... ..... . 121.7 150.3 ( 19~) 

Operating income . . .................... ..... .... . $ 80.5 $ 43.6 85'k -- --
Operating income increased $36.9 million (RS'l) primarily due to $28.0 million or earnings generated 

from the Jackson Hewitt tax service franchise business acquired an January 1998 and a SI 7 7 million 
pre-tax gain on the sale or Avis common stock in a February 1998 ~condary offering. These incrca\C' an 
operating income were offset by $17.7 million or 1997 operating income attributable 10 lnter\'al 
lnterna1ional. Inc .. which was sold in December 1997. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Acqubttlon Onrvlew 

The Company continues 10 seek to expand and strengthen its leadership posit ion 1n each of its 
business segments with strategic acquisitions. As a rei.ult. the Company acquired or agreed to acquire 
travel-related businesses in the UK and agreed to acquire American Bnnkcr' an early 1998. The 
Company's acquired businesses share similar cherocteristiQ. foremoM of which is that each w~ 
immediately aocretive to Company cash now and earn an&-' Revenue IS generally generated from service 
fees and is not derendcnt on tangible assets or the need for capital expenditures o ther than certain 
technology investments. These service businesses each generate significant cash now which 1~ enhanced by 
the Company's operating leverage that supports acquired revenue streams without corresponding 
increases in operating in(rastructure expenses. 

On August 12, 1998. the Company announced that the Executive Comm1t1ec of the Board of 
Directors committed to a plan to exit the consumer software and clu~s1flcd advert ing bu~iness seglT'cnts 
by divesting of its interest in its Cendant Software and Hcbdo Mag subsidiaries. The Company believes 
that these actions will generate significant gains and proceeds. which will increase equity and reduce debt. 

Pendln1 And Completed AcqubltJons 

American Bonkers. On March 23. 1998, the Company entered into a definitive agreement 10 acquire 
American Bankers Insurance Group. Inc. ("American Bankers") for $67 per share in ca'h and !.tock. for 
aggregate consideration of approximately $3.1 billion. The Company intends to purchase 23.S million 
shares of American Bankers at $67 per share through its pending ca~h tender offer, to be rollowed by a 
merger an which the Company will deliver Cendant shares v.1th a \alue of $67 for each remaining share 
of American Bankers common stock outstanding. The Compan)' ha\ received antHrust clearance 10 
acquire American Bankers. The tender offer 1s subject 10 the receipt of tenders representing at least SI 
percent of the common shares of American Bnnkcri. a_:, v.ell as customary clo\ing condition\. including 
regulatory approvals. The transaction 1s expected 10 be cum pie led f< •llo"' mg 1h~: rel>lntement of th•.: 
Company's financial statements. receipl of approval of Amencun Banker:.' shareholders. and rcceir1 of 
regulatory approvals. American Bankers provides affordable. specially insurance producb and \Cf\'1Ce!I 
through financial institutions. retailers and other cntit1c.s offering consumer finl.lncing. 

The Company plans to fund this acquisi11on with proceeds reccl\ ed from either 1t' neY. 1crm lu.111 
arrangement. borrowings under other commllled facilities. operutan1t c.1•h floy. or u cornh111u11on of the 
above. The Company may also fund a portion of 111e purch.1i.e price with cqu1ty or proceed~ from 1hc 
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disposi1ion or its consumer sohwarc and classified ndvemsing businesses. The Company may modify the 
mix of considera1ion to increase 1he cash position depending upon the value of the Company's common 
stock pricing. the timing of the dispositions or certain assets and the impact on ~igniftcant financial ratios. 

Acquisition of RAC Motoring Stn•icn On May 21 . 1998. the Company announced that it has 
reached a definitive ngreement with the Board or Dircc1ors of Royal Au1omobile Club Limited 
("RACL") to acquire their RAC Motoring Services subsidiary ror approximately S735 million in cash. 
The sale of RAC Motoring Services has subsequently been opproved hy its harcholdcrs. Closing b 
subject to certain conditions. including regulatory approval and is anticipnted to occur in the autumn of 
1998. The Company plans to fund this acquisition wuh proceeds from ei1her its new ierm loan 
arrnngemcot, borrowings under other committed facilities. operating cash Oow or a comhinatton of the 
above. 

National Parking Corporation. On April 27. 1998. the Company acquired National Parking 
Corporation ("NFC") for Sl.6 billion in cash. which included 1hc repayment or approximately $227 
million of outstanding NPC debt. NPC is substantially comprised of two operating subsidiaries. National 
Car Parks ("NCP") is the largest private (non-municipal) single car park operator in the UK with 
approximately 500 locations. Green Aag operates the third llirgcst roadside a)Sistance group in the UK 
and offers a wide-range or emergency support and rescue services to approximately 3.5 million mcmb:.:rs. 
The Company runded the NPC acquisition with borrowings under its revolving credit focilitic~ 

Harpur Group. On January 20, 1998. the Company completed the acquisition of Harpur. a leading 
fuel card and vehicle management company in the UK. from privately held H-G Holdings. Inc. for 
approximately $186.0 million in cash plus future contingent payments of up to $20.0 million over th:: next 
two years. 

Jackson HtwitL On J.lnuary 7, 1998. the Company completed 1hc acquis11ion of Jack~on Hewitt for 
approximately $480.0 million in cash. Jackson Hewi11 operates the second largest tax preparauon service 
franchise system in the United States. The Jackson Hewi11 franchise system specializes in computerized 
preparation of federal and state individual income tax returns. 

Othtr Compltttd 1998 Acquisitions. The Company paid cash to acquire certain ocher entities and 
assets for an aggregate purchase price of $544.5 million in cash. Additionally during the first quarter of 
1998. the Company paid $100.0 million to the seller of RCI 1n satisfaction of a contingent purchase 
liability. 

Providian. On December 9, 1997, the Company executed a definitive agreement to acquire 
Providian Auto and Home Insurance Company for approximately $219.0 million in cash. Closing is 
subject to receipt or required regulatory approval which will require restated financial statements of the 
Company and other customary conditions. Providian sells automobile insurance to consumers through 
direct response marketing. 

f1nancfn& (ExclusJve of Manasement and Monp&e Procram flnandnl) 

The Company believes that it has excellent hquidity and access to liquidity through various sources. 
The Company has also demonstrated its ability to access equity and public debt markets and financial 
1nst11utions to generate capital for strategic acquisitions. The Company is unable to aca:s.s equity and 
public debt markets until the tiling or restated financial statements with 11;~ Securities it'ld Exchange 
Comm1~1on. Accordingly. the Company has secured additional liquidity through other sources including 
a 364·day. $3.25 billion term loan facility and committed re\<olving credit fac11itles or $2.65 billion. 
Revolving credit facil ities include a bank commitment to provide a $650 millic n. 364-dny revolving fociltty. 
which 1s available to fund the American Bank«'rs. 

On Muy 29, 1998. the Company entered into a 364-. 'Jy term loan facility with a syndicate ortlnancial 
in~111utions which provides for borrowinp oC up 10 SJ.25 billion (the .. Term Loan Facili;y"). The Term 
Loan Facility bears interest at LIBOR plus the applicable UBOR spread. as dttined. The Company 
intends 10 repay aJI outstanding borrowinp under the Term Loan Facility prior to December I. 1998. 
Upon the execution of the Term Loan Facihty. temporary credit agreements, which provided for Sl.O 
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billion of borrowings. wereAninated. The Term Loan Facility cont.certain resiricuve covenants. 
which are substantially simi11'to and consistent with the covenants 1n ct for the Company's existing 
revolving credit agreements. At June 30. 1998. the Term Loan Facility was fully utilized The Company 
used $2 billion of the proceeds from the Term Loan Facility to refinance the outstanding borrowing' 
under its revolving credit facilities and intends lo U!IC the remainder Cor the acquisition of American 
Bankers, RAC Motoring Services (Sec Note 11 ) and for general corporate purpose~. 

The Company'S primary credit facility. consists of (i) a $750.0 million. live year n.:volving credit 
facility (the .. Five Year Revolving Credit Facility") and (ii) a Sl.25 billion. 364 day revolving credit fac1hty 
(the "364 Day Revolving Credit Facility") and collectively with the Five Year Revolving Cree.lit Facility. 
(the "Revolving Credit Facilities"). The 364-Day Revolving Credit Facility will mature on Septemher 30. 
1998 but may be extended on an annual basis for an additional 364 days upon receiving lender approval. 
The Company has submitted an extension request to the lenders under the 364 Day Revolving Crcdll 
Facility. The Five-Year Revolving Credit Facility will mature on October 1. 2001. The Revolving Crcdll 
Facilities. at the option of the Company. bear interest based on competitive bids of lenders participating 
in the facilities , at prime rates or at LIBOR plus o margin of approximately 22 bash pointi. The Company 
is required to pay a per annum facilit) fee of .081l- and .06% of the average dail) availability of the Five 
Year Revolving Credit Facility and 364 Day Revolving Credit Facility. respccllvcly. The intcre't rates und 
facility fees are subject to change based upon credit rating.\ on the Company's ~nior un~ecurcd long·term 
debt by nationally recognized statistical rating companies. The Revolving Credit Facilities contain certain 
restrictive covenants including restrictions on indebtedness. mergers. liquidations and sale and leaseback 
transactions and requires the maintenance of certain financial ratios. including a 3:1 minimum intcrc~t 
coverage ratio and a 3.5:1 maximum coverage ratio, as defined. 

Company debt was $4.J billion at June 30. 1998, which primarily consii.ted of $3.25 billion of 
short-Lenn borrowings under the Company'S Term Loan Facility and $700 mil hon or publicly i~sued fixed 
rate debt. 

The Company filed an amended shelf registramion statement (the "Shelf Registration Statement") on 
February 6. 1998 with the SecuritiC$ and Exchange Commission for the 1~<>uancc of up to an aggregate $4.0 
billion of debt and equit)' securities. Pursuant to lhc Shelf Registration Statement. the Company issued 
29.9 million FELINE PRIDES and 2.3 million trust rrcferred securities on March 2. 1998 and received 
approximately $1.4 billion in gross proceeds therefrom. The issuance of the FELINE PRIDES resulted 
in the utilization of approximately $3 billion of :wailability undcr the Shelf Rewstration Statement. The 
FELINE PRIDES consist of 27.6 million Income PRIDES and 2.3 million Growth PRIDES. each "ith u 
face amount of $50 per PRIDE. The Income PRIDES consist of tru!il securities and stock purcha~ 
contracts under which the holders will purchase common stock from the Company in February of 2001 . 
The Growth PRIDES consist of stock purchase contracts under which the holders will purcha~ common 
stock from Lhe Company in February 2001 and zero coupon U.S. Tre~ury sccunt1es. The tru~t preferred 
securities will bear interest at the annual rate of 6.45 percent. and the forward purchase contract forming 
a part of the Income PRIDES will pay I.OS percent annually in the form of a contract adj~tmcnt 
payment. The forward purchMc contract fanning a part of the Growth PRIDES will pay 1.3 percent 
annually in the fonn of a contract adjustment payment. The forward purchase contracts call for the holder 
to purchase a minimum of 1.0395 shares and a maximum of 1.3514 shares of the Company common stock 
per PRIDES security. depending upon the average of the closing price per share of Company common 
stock for a 20 consecutive trading day period ending in mid-February of 2001 . 

The Company filed a shelf registration statement v.ith the Sccunt1cs •md i;xchungc Commi~1on 
which has not yet become effective for the aggregate issuanre of up to $'\ 0 hillmn tlr dcht nnd equity 
securities. 

On Moy 4. 1998. the Company redeemed oil or the UUl'1tandmg (Sl41.5 million principal .m1oun1) or 
4 w~ Convertible Senior Not~ due 2003 at a price or 103.393'k of the pnnc1pal amount. together With 
interest accrued to the redemption date. Prior to May 4. I 998. $90.5 million of such notes were exchanged 
for 2.5 million shares of Company common stock. 
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On April 8. 1998, the Company exercised 1lS option to call its 61h'li Convertible Subordinated Notes 
(the "G'h'h Notes") for redemplion on May 11. 1998. In accordance with the provisions of 1hc indenture 
relating to the 6'h'I> Notes. Prior to the redemption <hue. all or the outstanding 61f:<\- Notes were 
converted into 2.1 million shares or Company common ~tock. 

Management And Mortp1e Proaram Flnandna 

PHH operates their mortgage M:rviccs. fleet management \ervices and rcloca11on ~rviccs hlilines.scs 
as a separate public reporting cn111y and supports purchases or lea~d vchiclc'i and onginated mortgages 
primarily by issuing commercial paper and medium term notes. Financial covenants related to 'iuch debt 
arc designed to ensure the self-sufficient liquidity status of PHH. Accordingly. PHH's publicly tiled 
financial statements and underlying put-licly issued debt were not Impacted hy the accounting irregulari­
ties previously disclosed and PHH continues to i.;sue debt securities in public markets. Such ~mowings 
arc not classified based on contractual maturit1~ . but rather arc included 1n liab1lit11.:i. under management 
and mortgage programs rather than long-term debt since such debt corresponds directly with high quality 
related assets. Additionally. PHH continues to pursue opportunitlci. to reduce ib borrowing requirementi. 
by securitizing increasing amounts of its high quality n.ssets. In May 1998. PHH commenced a program to 
sell originated mortgage loans to an unaffiliated buyer. at the option of the Company. up to the huyer\ 
asset limit of Sl.5 billion. The buyer may sell or ~curatizc such mongoge loans into the 'iecondnr)' market. 
however. servicing rights are retained by 1he Comrany. 

PHH deb! is issued without recourse 10 the Company. PHH expects to continue to have hroad accc~s 
to global capital markets by maintaining the quality of its a~ts under management. This " achieved by 
estab:ishing credit \tandards to m1nimia credit risk and lhe potential for lossc!>. Depending upon a~et 
growth and financial market conditions. PHH utilizes the United States. Luropcan and Canadian 
commercial paper markets. as well as other cost·effective short-term instruments. In add111on, PHH wall 
continue to utilize the public and private debt markets ns sources of financing. Augmenting thc'e sources. 
PHH will continue to manage outstanding debt with the poten11al sale or transfer of managed ru.scts to 
third parties while retaining fee-related servicing responsibility. At June 30. 1998. PHH's oulstGnding debt 
was comprised of commercial paper. medium-term notes and other borrowings of S3.2 billion. S3A b1lhon 
and S.2 billion, respectively. 

PHH filed a shelf registration ~tatcment with the Secunlle~ Jnd Exchange Commi!l:iion. which 
became effective March 2. 1998, for the aggregate i55uancc of up to SJ billion or debt ~curities. These 
securitie:i may be offered from lime to lime. together or ~paralely. based on terms to be determined at 
the lime of sale. The proceeds will be used to finance assets PHH manages ror 11s clients and fo r general 
corporate purposes. As or July 31. 1998, the PHH had issued S795 million of med1um·term notes under 
this shelf registration statement. 

To provide additional financial llcx1b1hty, PHH's current pohcy is to ensure that minimum comm1llcd 
facilillc.!. aggregate 80 percent of the average amount or outstanding commercial paper. PHH maintains 
S2.7 billion o( syndicated unsecured credit facilitic~ which is backed by domestic and foreign banks and 
arc compri5ed or $1.25 billion of lines of credit maturing an March 1999, which may be extended upon 
receiving lender approval. Sl.25 billion maturing in the year 2000 and a $200 m1llior. lacihty maturing in 
June 1999. In addition. PHH has approximately $186 million or uncommilled lines o( credit with various 
financial institutions. which were unused al June 30. 1998. Management closcl)' evaluates not only the 
credit of the banks but also the terms or the varioU5 agreements to ensure ongoinr " ilab1hty. The full 
amount of PHH's commilled fadlllies at June 30. 1998 was undrawn and available. 1vf1u1agcmen1 believes 
that 11s current policy provides adequate protection should volatiluy an 1he financial markets limit PH H's 
access to commercial paper or medium-term notes runding. 

PHH minimizes its exposure to interesl rate anc.l liqu1d1ty risk by cffecuvcly mn1chanj 0 0111101 one.I 
fixed interest ra1e and maturity characteristics of funding to rclalcd assets, vary1nr short and long·lerm 
domestic and internotional funding sources. and sci;uring ava1la Jle credi1 under comm1llec.l banking 
facilities. 
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On July 10. 1998. tbqAmpany entered into a Supplemental ln.ure No. I (the "Supplemental 
Indenture"} with The Firs~tional Bank of Chicago. O!I trustee. und c Senior Indenture dated as of 
June S. 1997, which formalizes the policy for PHH of limiting the payment of dividends and the 
outstanding principal balance of loans to the Parent Company to 40'l of consolidated net income (~ 
defined in the Supplemental Indenture) for each fisca l year The Supplemental Indenture prohibit'> PHH 
from paying dividends or making loans to the Parent Company 1f upon giving effect to i.uch dl\idcnd 
and/or loan. PHH\ debt to equity ratio exceeds 8 to I. 

Credit Ratlnp 

The Company's long-term debt credit ratings from S&P. Duff & PhclP\ ("Duff") and Moody\ remain 
at A. A and A3. respectively: however. such ratin~ arc being reviewed by such agencies v.ith ncgati\I: 
implications following the Company's March 23. 1998 announcements rcla11ng to the Company\ 
agreements to acquire American Bankers and NPC and its April IS. I vv~ annr'l11nccment regarding 
accounting irregularities discovered at the Conner CUC husinc~ units. PH I I\ prc~cnt long term and 'hnrt 
term debt ratings arc A+/AI A21PI. A+/Fl, A+/01 wuh Standard & Poor'i. (S& P). Moody\ lnve!ltor 
Service (Moody's). Filch IBC '\ and Duff & Phelps Credit Rating Co. (Durr). re~pcct1n:I) . Prei. ntly. the 
ratings of both S&P and MOO<Jy's related to PHH debt arc on watch with negati\ c imphca11nn~. \\. h1lc thl\ 
negative watch period has caused PHH to incur a marginal increase in it~ co't of fund, . management 
believes its sources of liquidity continue 10 be adequate. (A security ratintt 1s not a recommendation tu 
buy. sell or hold securities and is subject 10 revision or withdrawal at any lime). 

Company ln¥atiptlon Udpdon 

On April 15, 1998. as a result of the discovery of accounting 1rrcgularit1e' in the former Cl.JC b.Jsine-., 
units, which are pan of the Company's Alliance Marketing 'egment (former!) the Memhcr1.h1r i.cgment). 
the Audit Committee of the Company's Board of Director' in1tmted an invc,t1ga11on into 'luch malle~. 

The Audit Committee's investigation has since been completed and. a' a result of 1b findin (' '>. the 
Company has restated its previously reported financial results for the year. 1995 through 1997 and the 
quarterly periods during 1996 and 1997 and the first quarter of 1998. The Compan) expects to I e the 
following financial statements and other information with the SFC in late Augu\I 19%. (1) a1 d1ted 
restated financial statements for the years ended December J I. 199.S through 1997 on an amended r.orm 
10.K/A: (ii) unaudited restated financial statemenb for the quarter!) period-; ended March 31. 199" and 
1997 on an amended Form 10.0/A: and (iii) restated financial information for each of the 4ua tcrl) 
pcriodi. in 1997 and 1996. 

As a res uh of the aforementioned account in~ irregulur 111e,, numerou' r rpuned claS!> ad1on 
lawsuits. a purponed derivative lawsuit and an ind1v1dual lowi.u1t have hcen hied 1gamst the Com 1an) 
and. among others. its predecessor HFS. and ccruun currcn1 ancJ former officer~ and director' 0 1 the 
Company and HFS asscning various claims under the federal M:curuics law' anll l .: rt111n state Matutof) 
and common laws. In addition, the staff of the SEC and the United Stntei. Allorncy fur the Di,trict of f'..cv. 
Jersey arc conducting investigations relating to the accounting l\\UC\. The SEC wff ha' udv1..cd 1he 
Company that its inquiry should not be construed a!> on indication hy the Sl:.C ur ti!. ~tarr that any 
violations or law have occurred. 

While it is not feasible lo predict or determine the final outcome of t111:o,c procet Jing' or to eM1mate 
the amounts or potential range of loss with respect to the'c matter!>. mon:1gcment hcl1 vc' tha1 an :ic.J, cr-.c 
outcome w11h respect to !IUCh proceedings could haw o material atherM: impact on thl linJncial conditwn 
result~ or operations and cai.h nows of the Compan) 

Cash flO"°I 

The Company u...cd $251.3 million of Cil\h "°'"from opcratuin' in IW~ rcprt l' ntin~ ,, SJ~30.~ 
million decrea~e from the umc period an 1997 The Sl.J h1lllon t.lccrca'c m operating l.'3\h llov.' renech 
unprecedented growth an mongage loan onsin111on ' lume Rap1cJ ~ro"th v.h1ch c >ntntlu1cd lO the 
149~ increase tn Mortgage Servac:es operating 1nc-0mc. aho cuu-.cd u tempora11 delay in 'cllmit morigagc' 
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on the secondary market until July 1998. The Company u~d S3.9 billion in c~h no-w~ from inve:iting 
activities. which consisted of S2.7 billion of acqu~itions and acquisition-related payments and $811.9 
milliun of net investment in assets under management and mortgage programs. Cash provided by 
financing activities of SS.7 billion primarily reflects the issuance of the FELJNE PRIDES and procceJs of 
S3.3 billion from borrowings under the term loan facili ty. 

Impact Or New Acrountlna Pronouncement 

In June 1997. the FASB issued SFAS No. 131 " D1~losurcs About Segments of an Entcrpri\C and 
Related Information" dfcelive Cor annual periods ~ginning after December 15. 1997 and interim per ods 
subsequent to the initial year of npplicataon. SFAS No. 131 establishes standards for the wny th"t p1. Jlic 
business enterprises report information about their operating cgments an their annual and interim 
financial statements. It also requires pubhc enterprises to disclose company-wide information regarding 
products and services and the geographic areas in which they operate. The Company will adopt SFAS 
No. 131 in 1998. 

In February 1998. the FASB issued SFAS No. 132 "Employers' Disclosures About Pension and Other 
Postretircment Benefits" effective for periods beginning after December IS, 1997. The Company wall 
adopt SFAS No. 132 effective tor the 1998 calendar year end. 

The aforementioned recently Issued accounting pronouncements establish standarili. for d1'>Closurcs 
only and therefore will have no impact on the Company's financial position or results or operation~ 

In June 1998, the FASB Issued SFAS No. 133 "Accounting for Derivative Instruments nnd If edging 
Activitic:>" effective for the periods beginning after June JS. 1999. SFAS No. 133 m 1uires the recognition 
of all derivatives in the consolidated balance sheet as either assets or liabilities measured at fo1r value. The 
Company will adopt SFAS No. 133 ercectivc for the 2000 calendar year end. The Company hQ) not ~c t 

determined the impact SFAS No. 133 will have on its financial 'itatements. 

Year 2000 Compliance 

The Company currently is in the proce~ of tndentifying. evaluattng and implcmenttng changes to 
computer systems and applications nc.-ccssary lo achieve a year 2000 date con,ers1on "1th no effect on 
customers or disruption to business operations. These action~ arc necessary to ensure that the systems and 
applications will recognize and process data from and after January I. 2000 and hcyond. Major area~ of 
potential business impact have been Identified and arc being reviewed. and initial conversion efforts arc 
underway. However. 1( such modifications and conversions are not made. or arc not completed timely. the 
year 2000 issue could have a material impact on the operations of the Company. The total future cost of 
compliance associated with identified actions is anticipated to ~ approximately $4 million. Varaauon~ 
from anticipated expenditures and the effect on the Company·~ future results of operations nrc no' 
anticipated to be material in any given year. 

ITEM 3-QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

In recurring operations. the Company must deal with effects of changes in interest r:ues and currency 
exchange rates. The following di5Cussion presents an overvie" of how such changes arc managed and a 
view or their potential ercects. 

The Company uses various financial instruments. particularly interest rate .. nd currency swaps and 
currency lorwards. to manage tts respective interest rote and currency risks. The Comp.any 1~ excluMvcly 
on end U\Cr or these in~trumcnts, which ere commonly referred to as derivatives. The Company docs not 
engage an 1rnding. murkcl·making or other speculative activitie6 in the derivatives markets. Established 
practices require that derivative financial instruments relate to specific asset. liability or equity 
transactions or to currency exposures. 

The Securities and Exchange Commission requires that registrants includt mformat1on about 
potential effects of changes in interest rates and currem;y exchange i 1 their financial statements. Although 
the rules offer alternatives for presenting this information. none of the alternat1vcs is without limitations. 
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The following discussio .. ased on so-ailed "shock tests." whicl6>del effects or interest rate and 
currency shifts on the r!fl!rting company. Shock tests. while pro- y the most meaningful analysis 
pcnnitted, are constrained by several factors. including the necessity 10 conduct the analysis based on n 
single point in time and by their inability to include the extraordinarily complex market reactions that 
normally would arae from the market shirts modeled While the following r~ults or shock rests for 
interest r11te and currencies may have some limited use as benchmarks. they should not be viewed as 
forecasts. 

• One means of assessing exposure in interest rate changes is a duration-based analY'is that 
measures the potential loss in net earnings resulting from a hypothe11cal 10% change (decrease) 
in int.crest rates across aJI maturities (sometimes rercrred to as a "parallel shift in the yield 
curve"). Under this model. it is estimated that. all else constant, such decrca'lc would not 
adversely impact the 1998 net earnings or the Company based on June 30. 1998 positions. 

• One means of assessing exposure to changes in cu"cncy exchange rates is to model cff ccrs on 
future earnings using a sensitivity analysis. Six months ended June 30. 1998 consolidated currency 
exposures. Including financial instruments designated and effective as hedges. were analy1ed to 
identify the Company's assets and liabilities denominated m other than their relevant runctional 
currency. Net unhedgcd exposures in each cu"ency were then remeasured assuming a IO't 
change (decrease) in currency exchange ratci. compared with the U.S. dollar. Under this model. 
it is estimated that, all e~ constant. such a decrease would nor adversely impact the 1998 net 
earnings of the Company based on June 30. 1998 positions. 

The categories of primary market risk exposure or the Company are: (i) long· term U.S. interest rate:. 
due to mortgage loan origination commitments and an investment in mortgage loans held for resale: (i1) 
short-term interest rates as they impact vehicle an<.t relocation receivables: and (iii) LI BOR and 
commercial paper interest rates due to their impact on variable ra1e borrowan~. 
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- PART IL OTHER INFORMATION 

ITEM t-LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

The discussion contained under the heading "Company Investigation and Litigation" in Note 11 
contained in Part 1- FINANCIAL INFORMATION. Item I-Financial Statements, is incorporated 
herein by reference in its entirety. 

ITEM 6-EXHIBJTS AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 

(a) Exhibits 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K 

The Company filed a report on Form 8·K dated April 17. 1998 reporting in hem 5 the discovery or 
accounting irregularities at the former CUC lntcrnnt'ional Inc. business units. the termination of Cosmo 
Corigliano and the submission of resignations by Kirk Shelton and Amy Lipton. 

The Company filed a report on Form 8-K dated May 5, 1998 reporting in Item 2 the acquisition or 
National Parking Corporation Limited and In Item 5 the Company's first quarter 1998 earnings. the 
postponement of the Company's Annual Meeting, the execution or a commitment for a new Term Loan 
Facility and lhe availability of the Company's existing credit facilities. 

The Company tiled a report on Form 8-K dated May 18. 1998 reporting in Item 4 the dismissal or 
Ernst & Young LLP as the independent accountants upon whom Deloiue cl Touche LLP. the Company 
principal independent accountants. previously relied in its report on the Company. 

The Compnny tiled a report on Form 8-K dated June 4, 1998 reporting in Item 5 the execution or a 
new $3.25 billion term loan credit faciUty. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements or the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. the Registrant has duly 
caused this amendment to this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly 
authorized. 

Date: August 14. 1998 

CENDAITT CORPORATION 

By: Isl Scott E. Forbes 

Scott E. Forbes 
Executive Vice President 
and Chief Accounting Officer 
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CendantCom, Inc. 
Attachment 2 

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY 

As a subsidiary of Cendant Corporation (''Cendant"), CcndantCom will benefit from 

CendanCs significant financial resources.1 The Cendant family of companies is financially 

strong. As demonstrated by Cendant's most recent SEC Form I 0-Q, in the first six months of 

1998 Cendant reported totaJ revenues of$2.46 billion. In the second quarter 1998 alone Cendant 

reported total assets of approximately $20.5 billion, and total revenues of over $1 .3 billion, an 

increase from approximately $1.02 billion in the second quarter 1997 -- a 28 percent increase in 

revenues. Approximately $24.8 million of the net revenue increase was attributable to acquired 

1998 operations. with the remainder being attributable to internal growth. On the basis of the 

foregoing. CendantCom is financially qualified to provide telecommunications services in 

Florida. 

Cendant Com· s financial operations will be f mnnlly reported by Ccndunt Curporution on 
a consolidated basis. 
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CcndantCom, Inc. 
Attachment 3 

MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY 

CendantCom has the managerial ability necessary for the provision of intrastate 

telecommunications services in the state of Florida. CendantCom is managed by a team of 

highly experienced persoMel, which is also involved in the ongoing operations of Cendant 

Corporation. The directors and officers of CendantCorn are: 

John W. Cbidsey 
John H. Fullmer 
Anthony L. Menchaca 
Michael H. Wargotz 
Jeanne M. Murphy 
Terry E. Kridler 
Peter Ta.k:tikos 
Birgit Philipp 
Eric J. Bock 
Mark E. Johnson 
Peter 0. McOonagle 
John Peterson 
A. Donald Ruston 
Richard Schwamb 

Director & President • 
Director & Executive Vice President •• 
Director & Executive Vice President•• 
Chief Financial Officer & Assistant Treasurer • 
Secretary•• 
Senior Vice President & Treasurer •• 
Vice President** 
Vice President, Tax •• 
Assistant Secretary •• 
Assistant Treasurer • •• 
Assistant Secretary •• 
Assistant Trea'>urer • 
Assistant Treasurer • •• 
Assistant Treasurer * 

Biographies of the above-listed directors and officers will be forwarded to the 

Commission upon request. 

• These individuals may be reached at the following address: 
6 Sylvan Way 
Parsippany, NJ 07054 

•• These individuals may be reached at the following address: 
707 Summer Street 
Stamford, CT 06901 

••• These individuaJs may be reached at the following address: 
307 International Circle 
Hunt Valley, MD 21030 
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